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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 23 JULY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Hul ley,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:    Morn ing Chai r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Good morning Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.   Good morning.   Good 

morning.   A re we ready? 

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:    We are ready Chai r.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r  I  be l ieve we are.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  thank you.   Thank you.   Mr Math ibedi  10 

i t  would be  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  would be bet ter  i f  –  i t  would be bet ter  i f  

you put  on your  jacket .    

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.   A l l  r ight .   Th is morning’s  

session is  to  g ive  var ious NPA off i c ia ls  and I  am just  t ry ing 

to  remember whether  there are other  off i c ia ls  other  than 

NPA off ic ia ls  who had appl ied fo r  leave to  cross-examine 

cer ta in  wi tnesses who gave evidence impl icat ing them an 20 

opportuni ty  to  g ive  a  summary o f  the i r  response to the 

ev idence g iven by  those wi tnesses and the summary is  

meant  to  be a summary of  what  is  conta ined in  the i r  

a ff idavi t s  and they wi l l  do so through the i r  counsel .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Are you ready Mr Math ibedi?  

 ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson I  am ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

 ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson I  am being assis ted by  

Advocate Ramaimela and Advocate Mat langa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   What  we have decided to do is  that  I  

wi l l  deal  wi th  cer ta in  of  the – of  the top ics as set  out  in  the 

summaries.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   And my col leagues wi l l  deal  wi th  

others.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no that  is  f ine.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and you undertake a l l  –  a l l  o f  you to  

complete wi th in  two hours,  is  that  r ight?  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson save that  accord ing to  

my watch i t  is  now seven minutes past  ten so we d id not  –  

we d id not  s ta r t  –  s tar t  a t  exact ly  ten o ’c lock.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  no we – i t  w i l l  be two hours f rom when 20 

you star t .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay a l l  r ight .   Now you may star t .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thank – Cha i rperson the  f i rs t  por t ion  

that  I  am going to  star t  wi th  i t  is  f rom page 7 to  page 28 
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paragraph ending at  81 and thereaf te r  that  Advocate  

Ramaimela wi l l  take over.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   In t ro  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe before you proceed fo r  the  record 

you can just  –  you can p lace on record again who the – who 

your  c l ients  a re  that  you wi l l  be – on  whose behal f  you wi l l  

be doing th is  and when I  say you,  I  accept  that  i t  is  you and 

your  jun io rs.   In  o ther  words.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You may have decided to d iv ide the work 

but  as I  understand i t  you represent  a group of  c l ients but  i f  

you represent  d i f ferent  c l ients wi th in  the  group,  you can 

make that  c lear  as wel l .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.   Cha i rperson 

the impl icated of f ic ia ls  that  NPA off ic ia ls  that  we – we 

represent  are Advocate Pretor ius,  Advocate Baloy i ,  

Advocate Maema,  Advocate Mathenjwa,  Advocate Mogot le ,  

Advocate Chauke and Advocate Mashuga.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you,  thank you.   Okay that  is  f ine.   20 

Thank you.   You may proceed.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.    

a .  In t roduct ion.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id you star t  f rom page? 

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Page 7.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   To 28.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  thank you.    

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   The impl icated prosecutors 

appl i cat ions for  the condonat ion of  the la te f i l ing of  the Rule  

3.4 statements submi t ted as wel l  as the i r  appl i cat ions for  

the cross-examinat ion of  the wi tnesses who impl icated them 

in state capture was set  down for  hear ing on 15 and 16 of  

June 2021.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  want  –  I  am sorry Mr Math ibedi  just  10 

one second.   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV MATHIBED SC:   Sorry Chai rperson for  the purpose of  

the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   An er ror  on my s ide I  forgo t  to  –  to 

ment ion Advocate  Mosing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Thank you.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Dr  Pretor ius ’ appl i cat ion for  the  

condonat ion of  the la te f i l ing of  h is  supplementary af f idavi t ,  

leading of  h is  ev idence and cross-examinat ion as wel l  as  20 

the cross-examinat ion of  Booysen and McBr ide was set  

down for  25 and 28 June 2021.  

 A t  the hear ing of  15 June 2021 the impl icated  

prosecutors were  in formed by the Chai rperson that  he was 

inc l ined to  refer  to  mat ters  fa l l ing under  the law 
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enforcement  work st ream inc lud ing the imp l icated  

prosecutors mat ters to  other  agencies for  fur ther  

invest igat ion as the re la ted invest igat ions were not  f ina l i sed 

and a lso due to t ime const ra in ts.  

 I t  is  in  l ight  o f  these operat ional  const ra in ts of  the  

commission that  the impl icated prosecutors asked for  and 

were granted leave to  record the i r  vers ions regard ing  

evidence impl icat ing them in hear ings of  the commiss ion.  

 The recordal  o f  the impl icated prosecutors vers ions 

was requested not  just  for  the sake of  an audience but  i t  is  10 

in tegra l  to  the impl icated prosecutors const i tu t ional  r ight  to  

a fa i r  hear ing and an accords wi th  the ru les of  natura l  

just i ce.  

 The not ion of  s tate capture is  newly g lobal l y  and 

local ly.   I t  is  not  yet  legal l y  def ined in  South:  Af r i can law.   

In  deal ing wi th  the submissions a l ready made to the 

Chai rperson a l leg ing that  the impl icated prosecutors are  

impl icated in  s tate capture i t  is  important  that  a l l  the 

re levant  and avai lab le in fo rmat ion be p laced before the  

Chai rperson for  considerat ion.  20 

 This i s  per t inent  to  the development  of  s tate capture  

law in  South Af r i can legal  system.   In  l ight  o f  the above i t  is  

per t inent  that  the  impl icated prosecutors present  – present  

the i r  vers ions in  the commission  so that  the publ ic  may 

know why a l l  the suspects were  prosecuted or  decis ions 
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were made to decl ine to  prosecute so that  some fo rm – 

some forms par t  o f  the repor t  o f  the commission consider ing 

that  operat ional  const ra in ts p reclude them f rom exerc is ing 

the i r  r ight  to  c ross-examine those that  impl icated them.  

b.  Genera l  Overv iew Opening Remarks.  

The jud ic ia l  au thor i t ies the comments that  the  

Chai rperson made dur ing the leading of  the ev idence of  

some of  the wi tnesses who test i f ied in  the commission as 

wel l  as the Chai rperson’s announcement  at  the hear ing of  

15 June 2021 regard ing the operat ional  const ra in ts of  the  10 

commission provide a backdrop against  wi th  – wh ich the 

summaries of  the impl icated prosecutors are recorded.  

 The const i tu t ional  cour t  in  the judgment  of  Secretary 

of  the Judic ia l  Commission on Inqui ry  in to a l legat ions of  

s tate capture,  cor rupt ion and f raud in  the publ i c  sector  

inc lud ing state of  organs versus Jacob Gedleyih lek isa Zuma 

wi th  regard to  the  publ i c  in te rest  in to the commission of  the 

inqui ry  s tated as fo l lows.  

In  addi t ion to  the  funct ion of  advis ing the President  a 

Commission of  Inqui ry  may a lso  serve the purpose of  20 

hold ing a publ i c  inqui ry  in  respect  o f  a  mat ter  o f  publ i c  

concern.   The purpose of  a  pub l ic  hear ing under those 

c i rcumstances is  to  restore publ ic  conf idence in  the 

inst i tu t ion  in  which  the mat te r  that  caused concern arose.   

Here the focus is  not  what  the President  decides to  do wi th  
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the f ind ings and recommendat ions of  a  par t i cu lar  

commission instead the object i ve is  to  reveal  the t ru th to 

the publ i c  per ta in ing to  the  mat ter  that  gave r i se to  the  

concern “emphas is” .   S imi la r ly  the const i tu t ional  cour t  in 

the judgment  of  Min is ter  o f  Po l ice and Others  versus 

Premier  of  the Western Cape and Others expla ined the 

purpose of  an  invest igat ive  commission and the  

requi rements of  publ i c  purpose as fo l lows:   

 In  addi t ion to  advis ing the execut ive a commission of  

inqui ry  serves a deeper publ i c  purpose par t i cu lar ly  a t  t imes 10 

of  widespread d isquiet  and d iscontent .   In  the words of  

Corder  J  of  the Canadian Supreme Court  in  Phi l l i ps  versus 

Nova Scot ia  one of  the pr imary funct ions of  publ i c  inqui r ies 

is  facts – is  fact  f ind ing.   They are of ten convened in  the  

work of  publ ic  shock,  horror,  d is i l lus ionment  o r  scept ic ism 

in  order  to  uncover  the t ru th.  

 In  t imes of  publ ic  quest ion ing st ress and concern  

they provide the means for  Canad ians to  be appra ised of  

the condi t ions per ta in ing to  a worr isome communi ty  problem 

and to be par t  o f  the recommendat ions that  are a imed at  20 

resolv ing the problems.   Both the status and publ i c  respect  

o f  the Commissioner  and the open and publ i c  nature of  the  

hear ing helped to  restore publ i c  conf idence not  on ly in  the 

inst i tu t ion or  s i tuat ion invest igated but  a lso in  the process 

of  government  as  a whole they are an excel lent  means of  
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in forming and educat ing concerned members of  the publ i c . ”  

 There is  a  footnote number 3 I  am not  go ing to  read 

that  for  you know due to t ime const ra in ts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   In  the mat ter  o f  the Chai rperson of  

the jud ic ia l  commission of  inqui ry  in to state capture  th is  is  

President  o f  the Republ ic  o f  South Af r i ca.   The 

commission’s cha i rperson in  mot ivat ing for  an extension of  

the per iod for  the  commission to  complete i t s  work i s  sa id to  

have expla ined that  the outstanding work gets  to  be  10 

conducted inc ludes the invest igat ion  and or  complet ion of  

invest igat ions of  a l legat ions tha t  the law enforcement  

ent i t ies such as the Nat ional  P rosecut ing Author i t y  NPA,  the 

Di rector  of  Publ ic  Pr io r i ty  Invest igat ion,  CPCI  or  Hawks or  

the Specia l  Invest igat ing Uni t ,  S IU may have a lso been 

captured.  

 Wi th regard to  the funct ions of  the NPA and the  

obl igat ions on how i ts  o ff i c ia ls  a re con – are to  conduct  

the i r  dut ies the Supreme Court  o f  Appeal  (SCA)  in  the  

judgment  of  Zuma versus the DA stated as fo l lows:  20 

 The f i rs t  respondent  (NPA) as an organ of  s tate has 

a duty to  p rosecute wi thout  fear,  favour  o r  p re jud ice by  

uphold ing the ru le  of  law and pr inc ip le  of  legal i ty.  

 I t  is  a lso a const i tu t ional  body wi th  a publ i c  in te rest  

duty.   I t  beholds  i ts  o ff i c ia ls  to  operate wi th  t ransparency 
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and accountabi l i ty.   I t  has  a duty  to  expla in to  the c i t izenry  

why and how i t  ar r ives at  the decis ion to  quash the cr iminal  

charges against  the accused persons par t icu lar ly  where the  

mat te r  involves very senior  s tate o ff ic ia ls .  

 In  pursuance of  i ts  const i tu t ional  ob l igat ions i t  is  

incumbent  upon the NPA to pass the rat ional i ty  test  and 

in form the publ ic  why i t  quashed the charges in  v iew the 

convince would make the publ i c  lose conf idence in  the 

off ice of  the NP –  NDPP” our  own emphasis.    

 There Is  no doubt  that  the comments of  the  10 

Chai rperson made dur ing the ev idence of  Sesoko and 

Nxasana were to  the effect  tha t  due to  the grave and 

ser ious nature of  the a l legat ions level led against  the 

impl icated prosecutors he would  request  the ev idence 

leaders and the invest igators to  obta in the re levant  dockets 

and or  in format ion that  the prosecutors had before them 

when they made decis ions to  e i ther  prosecute or  decl ine to  

prosecute.  

 The reason is  tha t  th is  wi l l  enable the commission to  

determine whether  the impl icated prosecutors had good 20 

reasons to  recommend and inst i tu te prosecut ions or  to  

decl ine.  

 Chai rperson I  can say i t  w i thout  cont radict ion that  a l l  

the dockets that  were considered by the impl icated  off ic ia ls  

were del ivered and presented to  the commission.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai r  the above sent iments 

expressed by the  Chai rperson had been over taken by cr ime 

and more par t icu la r ly  the operat ional  const ra in ts  of  the 

commission.   As such the Chai rperson as ind icated in  the 

in t roductory por t ion of  th is  summaries wi l l  no longer affo rd  

the  impl icated prosecutors an opportuni ty  to  appear  before  

h im and take h im through the dockets and or  any 

in format ion they had before them in making decis ions 

whether  to  p rosecute or  decl ine same.  10 

 The a l legat ions that  impl icated  prosecutors are  

captured e i ther  fo r  po l i t ica l  or  cor rupt  reasons are based on 

conjecture and speculat ion.  

 Conjecture and speculat ion are not  suff i c ient  to  

establ ish what  i s  imputed to  the  impl icated prosecutors.   

S imi la r ly  there is  no just i f i cat ion to  in fer  wrongdoing on the  

par t  o f  the impl icated prosecutors.  

 In  the mat te r  o f  State versus Motswene the cour t  

re ferred to  t r ibe  legal  pr inc ip les  per ta in ing to  conjecture  

and speculat ion which are d i f ferent  f rom in ferences and 20 

stated that  in ferences must  be carefu l l y  d is t inguished f rom 

conjecture or  speculat ion.  

 There can be no in fe rence unless there are object i ve  

facts f rom which  to  in fer  the fac t  which i t  is  sought  to  

establ ish.  
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 In  some cases the other  facts can be in fer red wi th  

such pract ica l  cer ta in ty as i f  they had been actual ly  

observed.   In  other  cases the in ference does not  go  beyond 

reasonable probabi l i ty  but  i f  there  are no posi t ive proved 

facts f rom which the in ferences can be made the method of  

in ferences fa i l s  and what  is  le f t  is  mere speculat ion or  

conjecture.  

1 .  The in fe rence sought  to  be drawn must  be consistent  

wi th  a l l  the proved facts.   I f  i t  is  not  the in fe rence 

cannot  be drawn.  10 

2.  The proved facts  should be such that  they exclude 

every reasonable  in ference f rom them save the one 

sought  to  be drawn.   I f  they do not  exclude other  

reasonable in ferences then there must  be doubt  

whether  the in fe rence sought  to  be  drawn is  cor rect .  

Rol ls  p layers and how some of  them… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry Mr Math ibedi  o f  course that  

quotat ion is  appropr ia te in  cr imina l  mat ters that  approach to  

the drawing of  in ferences namely the proved facts should be 

such that  they exclude every reasonable in ference f rom 20 

them save the one sought  to  be drawn.   That  is  appropr ia te  

in  a cr iminal  mat te r.  

 Once you ta lk  about  d rawing in ferences in  none 

cr iminal  mat te rs  such as c iv i l  mat te rs then the  test  i s  

d i f ferent  namely … 
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ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Possib le  in fe rence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  have to  exclude – ja  you have 

got  to  look at  the most  possib le  in ference.   Is  that  cor rect .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:    That  is  correct  Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  a l l  r ight .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson by tak ing in to account  

the – the nature  of  the proceedings that  we are  deal ing 

wi th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   We wi l l  respect fu l ly  submi t  that  a lso 10 

th is  pr inc ip le  of  –  is  a lso appl i cable in  the c i rcumstances.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  –  I  would imag ine that  i t  is  appl icabi l i ty  

would be f ine where the assessment  re la tes to  whether  in  

tak ing a cer ta in  decis ion whether  to  prosecute or  not  to  

prosecute the prosecutor  re l ied on acceptable in ferences in  

weighing up the evidence whether  there would be enough 

evidence to prosecute or  not .  

 But  in  regard to  whether  for  example I  use the you 

know the bold a l legat ion whether  they were captured or  not  

captured that  might  be d i f ferent .   But  where you say was 20 

that  decis ion that  he or  she took to  prosecute th is  par t icu la r 

person or  to  dec l ine to  prosecute  i f  he  or  she re l ied on  

in ferences then those in fe rences would be guided by th is  

k ind of  pr inc ip le  that  you have quoted.  

 But  once i t  is  someth ing e lse then i t  would be the 
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c iv i l  k ind of  approach.   Would you agree wi th  that?  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson my – my submission is  

that  because we are deal ing wi th  su i  gener is  processes 

when i t  comes to – to  the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Our submission is  that  both – both 

are appl i cable because our  submission is  that  no concrete 

ev idence was tendered before th is  commission in  support  o f  

the a l legat ions made by those who f inger  our  – our  c l ients 

as e i ther  be ing  captured for  e i ther  po l i t i ca l  o r  cor rupt  10 

reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  guess in  a way because the  

commission wi l l  not  be making any def in i t i ve f ind ings i t  i s  

not  so important  for  now.   

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay a l l  r ight .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Role p layers and how some of  the  

mat te rs are in ter l inked rendi t ion Mosing guided the  

invest igat ion in to  a l legat ions of  the i l legal  ext radi t ion of  

Zimbabwean Nat ionals who were k i l led and tor tured af te r  20 

being handed over  to  Zimbabwean pol i ce by Malu leke of  the 

DPCI  and other  members of  such.  

 In i t ia l ly  the invest igat ion in to the unlawfu l  

ext radi t ion of  the  Zimbabwean Nat ionals was conducted by  

Mukongwe a detect ive at  the detect ive serv ices 
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Mpumalanga and JJ Mahlangu at tached to the stock thef t  

un i t  Middelburg.   Two months la te r  Innocent  Humbulani  

Khuba of  the Independent  Pol ice Invest igat ion Di rectorate,  

IP ID jo ined Mokange and Mahlangu and appointed other  

members of  the IPID and led the invest igat ion.  

 On 22n d January 2014 Khuba prepared and s igned a  

repor t  and submi t ted the repor t  and docket  to  Mos ing who 

sent  the docket  and repor t  to  DPP South Gauteng.   The 

repor t  recommended that  Genera ls  Anwa Dramat ,  Dramat ,  

Shadrack S ib iya,  S ib iya together  wi th  Malu leke and other  10 

jun ior  po l ice off ic ia ls  be  charged wi th  amongst  others  

k idnapping and defeat ing the ends of  just ice.  

 On 3 March 2014 McBr ide  was appointed the 

execut ive head of  IP ID.   On 6 March 2014 McBr ide  

inst ructed Khuba and Angus to  ret r ieve the docket  f rom the 

DPP South Gauteng.   Khuba and Angus upl i f ted the docket  

on 7 March 2014.  

 McBr ide inst ructed Khuba and Sesoko to rev iew the 

evidence and on 18 March 2014 the IPID prepared a  second 

repor t  which recommended that  Malu leke together  wi th  20 

other  jun io r  po l i ce off i c ia ls  be charged wi th  k idnapp ing and 

defeat ing the ends of  just i ce.  

 I t  no longer inc luded Dramat  and S ib iya.   In  Apr i l  

2014 on the inst ruct ions of  McBr ide the docket  and the  

repor t  dated 18 March 2014 were del ivered to  Nxasana who 
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kept  the docket  unal located unt i l  13 January 2015 – a  

per iod of  approximate ly  e ight  months.  

 In  December 2014 the then Min is ter  o f  Pol i ce Nath i  

Nhleko,  Nhleko suspended Genera l  Dramat .  Somet ime in  

2015 Nhleko appointed Werksman to invest igate the issue 

of  the two IPID repor ts  wi th  d i f ferent  recommendat ions.  

 A case docket  o f  defeat ing the ends of  just i ce and 

f raud was opened against  McBr ide,  Khuba and Sesoko.   In  

February 2016 Maema recommended that  McBr ide,  Khuba 

and Sesoko be prosecuted.  10 

 Dr  Pretor ius agreed wi th  Maema’s  recommendat ion.   

Dr  Pretor ius in  l ine wi th  the checks and balances envisaged 

by Sect ion 24(3)  of  the NPA Act  1998 consul ted w i th  DPP 

North Gauteng.   Advocate S ibongi le  Mzinatha who agreed 

wi th  the recommendat ion.   Somet ime in  2016 af ter  the  

rendi t ion docket  had gone on a merry-go-round exp la ined in  

the re levant  por t ion of  th is  record ia l  the docket  was 

a l located to  Baloy i  who f ina l l y  took a decis ion to  p rosecute 

Dramat ,  S ib iya and Malu leke.  

 In  2018 Dramat  and S ib iya made representat ions 20 

and Baloy i  recommended that  the charges against  them be 

provis ional l y  wi thdrawn.   The case is  cur rent ly  proceeding 

against  Malu leke.  

 The prosecutors involved in  the rendi t ion mat te r  and 

the defeat ing of  the ends of  just ice where Mosing,  Baloy i ,  
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Mzinyath i ,  Maema and Dr Pretor ius – sorry Chai rperson my 

l ight  just  went  off  –  I  am just  ask ing  for  a  l ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   There were – sor ry Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   There were var ious in ter - locketory  

appl i cat ions inc lud ing the v iew appl icat ions against  the  

issu ing of  racketeer ing author isat ions issued by Advocate 

Nomgcobo J iba the then act ing NDPP on 17 August  2012 

and Advocate Shaun Abrahams,  Abrahams on 13 February 10 

2016.   

 The rev iew appl icat ions against  the racketeer ing 

author isat ion issued by J iba cu lminated in  the judgment  by  

Govern J.   Both  has re l ied on the f ind ings of  Govern J  

judgment  before th is  commission and ignore the fact  that  in  

the judgment  of  GCB versus J iba and Others Legodi  J  found 

that  Govern J d id  not  have the fu l l  facts before h im.  

 The f ind ings made by Legodi  J  were supported in  the 

SCA judgment  when the mat ter  went  on appeal .   S imi la r ly  

the Mokgoro Inqu i ry  a lso found tha t  had the fu l l  facts been 20 

p laced before Govern J he may have come to a d i f ferent  

conclus ion regard ing the f ind ing of  mendaci ty  against  J iba.  

 The current  NDPP Advocate Shami la  Batohi  –  Batoh i  

appointed De Kock panel  to  reconsider  racketeer ing 

author isat ion issued by J iba and Abrahams.  
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 Th is resul ted in  the De Kock Report .   The impl icated  

prosecutors are of  the considered v iew that  the repor t  i s  

f raud in  a ( ind is t inct )  respect  as se t  out  in  the i r  a ff idavi t s .  

 For  example the quant  to  the fa i lu re to  the panel l i s ts  

to  consul t  and sa lute – so l i c i t  the v iews of  the prosecut ion  

team to the quest ions that  they stated they could not  f ind 

answers to .  

 Another  example  is  that  the i r  summary of  the i r  

ev idence is  in  most  respect  patent ly  incor rect .   Of  the – a l l  

o f  th is  po inted out  in  Maema and Mathenjwa’s aff idav i ts  and 10 

as a resul t  o f  the De Kock’s Report  the racketeer ing  

author isat ions were wi thdrawn by Batohi  whi ls t  the 

predicate charges were wi thdrawn by the cur rent  DPP KZN 

they impl icated  prosecutors who fo rm par t  o f  the 

prosecut ion team are of  the considered v iew and have 

demonst rated in  the i r  a ff idavi t s  that  the i r  wi thdrawal  was 

i r ra t ional  having regard to  the decis ion of  the SCA in the  

mat te r  o f  Zuma versus Democrat ic  A l l iance and Others  

where the SCA amongst  others held:  

“The exclus ion of  the prosecut ion team f rom 20 

the f ina l  de l iberat ions leading up to  the 

decis ion to  d iscont inue the prosecut ion  

appeared to  have been del iberate and was 

in  i tse l f  i r ra t ional .   They were senior  

l i t igators steeped in  the case acquainted 
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w i th  the legal  issues and had a  cr i t ica l l y  

important  cont r ibut ion to  make regard ing the  

u l t imate decis ion  to  terminate the  

prosecut ions. ”  

 In  the re levant  por t ions of  th is  record ia l  we c i te  out  

the summaries of  the impl icated prosecutors.    

 The Amigos case.   Advocate  Steenberg  was the  

prosecutor  assigned to deal  wi th  the mat ter  a t  i ts  incept ion.   

He then le f t  the NPA to jo in  the in te rnat ional  cr iminal  cour t  

and Advocate Cyr i l  S imphiwe Mlotshwa – Mlotshwa who 10 

became the act ing Di rector  o f  Publ ic  Prosecut ion  – DPP 

KZN assembled a  prosecut ion team lead by Advocate Ndel i  

Dunwa – Dunwa and consisted of  Advocates S iphunza,  

Vincent  Npanjana and Makosin i ,  Thembu Mthembu,  Spunzi  

and Tanjana la te r  le f t  the NPA and were replaced on the  

team by Advocate  Bule lwa Thembani  –  Thembani .  

 Mlotshwa s igned the ind ic tment  in  respect  o f  the  

predicate charges on 31 August  2011.   A l though the 

formulat ion of  the  charges in  the ind ic tment  was sa id to  be 

defect ive by Advocate Johan Kruger – Kruger,  Kruger was 20 

the head of  the Specia l  Pro ject  –  SPD and h is  responsib i l i ty  

was to  process the racketeer ing charges before they got  

author ised by the  NDPP in terms o f  Sect ion 24 of  POCA on 

the same date.  

 Advocate Menzies S imi lan i  –  S imi lan i  i ssued an 
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author isat ion cer t i f icate  in  respect  o f  racketeer ing charges.   

Mosing succeeded Kruger as head of  the SPD and in  that  

posi t ion,  he was mandated together  wi th  Advocate Lawrence 

Mrwebi  –  Mrwebi  to  assis t  the prosecut ion team in 

amending the ind ic tment  as Kruger ( ind is t inct )  re la t ing to  

the charges they in  has – had st i l l  not  been at tended to.  

  Mlotshwa was st i l l  DPP at  the t ime but  was la te r  

rep laced by Advocate Moyiponi  Mnopo.   Upon f ina l i sat ion of  

amending the ind ic tment  a decis ion  was taken by Mnopo to  

wi thdraw charges against  some of  the accused where i t  was 10 

found that  the ev idence avai lab le does not  support  the  

charges la id  against  them.  

 SARS re lated mat te r.   The in tercept ion of  

communicat ion at  the Di rectorate o f  Specia l  Operat ion DSO 

and the NPA off i cers.  

 The above case re lates to  the unlawfu l  insta l la t ion o f  

survei l lance equipment  and unlawfu l  in te rcept ion of  

communicat ion at  the off ices of  the  DSOL and NPA by SARS 

High Risk Invest igat ion Uni t  wide ly known as the  Rogue 

Uni t .   The exis tence of  the Rogue Uni t  became pub l ic  a f ter  20 

i t  was widely publ i shed in  the media.   The publ icat ion  

referred to  above a lso revealed that  Rogue Uni t  was fo rmed 

and operated in  cont ravent ion on the law.  

 The invest igat ion  that  ensued resul ted in  cr iminal  

prosecut ions so the proceedings being inst i tu ted against  
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cer ta in  SARS off i c ia ls .   The prosecutors who were involved 

in  the above cr im inal  p roceedings are accused of  enabl ing 

the state capture by McBr ide and Booysen.  

 Ear ly  re t i rement  o f  Ivan P i l lay.  

 Dur ing the invest igat ion of  the Rogue Uni t  case a 

correspondence re lat ing to  P i l lay ’s  ear ly  re t i rement  was 

d iscovered.   Perusal  o f  the cor respondence revealed that  

the ear ly  re t i rement  in  quest ion might  have been granted in  

c i rcumstances that  are cont rary to  the appl icable legal  

prescr ip ts.  10 

 The prosecutors who had guided the invest igat ion in  

the Rogue Uni t  case d i rected that  the ear ly  re t i rement  issue 

should a lso be invest igated.  

 The invest igator  invest igat ions resul ted in  c r imina l  

proceedings being inst i tu ted aga inst  Oba Magashula – 

Magashula,  I van P i l lay – P i l lay  and Pravin Gordhan – 

Gordhan.   This too led to  the prosecutors involved being  

label led as enablers to  the state capture a lso by McBr ide 

and Booysens.  

 CC Refusal  to  charge Br igadier  S ik le le  Xaba and 20 

others.   Mr V lok  Symington – Symington mat te r  Brooklyn 

case 790/10/2016.   This mat ter  i s  a  sequel  to  the mat ter  

re la t ing to  P i l lay ’s  ear ly  re t i rement .  

 A f ter  having been cr iminal l y  charged Magashula and 

P i l lay made Sect ion 179(5)  representat ions to  the NDPP for  
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charges against  them to  be wi thdrawn.   Amongst  others in  

the i r  representat ions they ment ioned that  the manner in  

which P i l lay ’s  ear ly  re t i rement  was handled was based upon 

an opin ion that  was prepared by Symington.  

 When the mat ters of  the invest iga t ion team went  to  

obta in a statement  f rom Symington a standoff  between 

Symington and the members of  the invest igat ion team 

ensued in  re la t ion to  PCLU memoranda that  Symington was 

in  possession of .  

 F lowing f rom the ( ind is t inct )  o f  Symington la id  10 

cr iminal  charges against  the members of  the invest igat ion 

team – so invest igat ing team and the bodyguard  of  the  

SARS commissioner.   

 When the mat ter  u l t imate ly  came before Baloy i  in  h is  

capaci ty  as the act ing  DPP North  Gauteng he dec l ined to  

prosecute.   His  refusal  to  p rosecute led to  h im being 

accused of  enabl ing state capture by McBr ide and Booysen.  

 Kameelsdr f t  CAS 12/01/2017 Role P layers.  

 Paul  O’Sul l i van – O’Sul l ivan,  Sara J ( ind is t inct )  

Trent ,  Demani  B inang – B inang and ( ind is t inct )  Mah langu –  20 

Mahlangu went  to  the home of  the then act ing pol i ce 

nat ional  commiss ioner  Genera l  Phahlane – Phahlane and 

O’Sul l i van fa lse ly  ident i f ied h imsel f  to  the secur i t y  o ff icer  

and estate manager as a member of  the IPID.   A c la im 

which Mahlangu and B inang fa i led to  cor rect .  
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 Secur i ty  deta i l s  re la t ing to  Phahlane’s home and 

motor  vehic les was asked fo r  by  O’Sul l i van and he a lso 

threatened the  estate manager and ( ind is t inct )  o f  

Phahlane’s house wi th  ar rest  i f  they d id not  coopera te wi th  

h im.  

 Advocate A Geyser  was the prosecutor  who was 

charged wi th  the  responsib i l i t y  o f  gu id ing the invest igat ing 

team in regard to  th is  mat te r.   And af te r  h is  res ignat ion i t  

was a l located to  Mashuge who u l t imate ly  p refer red charges 

against  O’Sul l i van,  Trent ,  B inang and Mahlangu.  10 

 O’Sul l i van sent  a  f lur ry  of  threa tening emai ls  to  

Phahlane and Mashuga.   The fo rmer of  which form par t  o f  

the charges against  O’Sul l ivan.  

 McBr ide impl ica ted Mashuga as par t  o f  the  

prosecutors who have acted improper ly  and or  un lawfu l l y  

and sought  to  among others unduly in te r fe re in  the  

invest igat ive independence of  the  NPA,  the IPID and the  

Hawks.  

 S tandalone mat te rs,  wi thdrawal  o f  charges against  

Madlu lu.   Madlu lu  was charged wi th  k idnapping and murder  20 

of  Mogebe.   The docket  was taken to the DPP as G for  a 

decis ion.   The possib i l i t y  o f  re fer r ing the murder  charges fo r  

an inquest  was ra ised and a v iew expressed that  i t  was 

prudent  to  rather  re fer  the mat ter  for  inquest  and depending 

on the outcome o f  the inquest  then proceed wi th  k idnapping 
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and murder  charges in  one prosecut ion.  

 PCLU involvement  in  mat ters outs ide i ts  mandate .   

The PCLU deal t  wi th  mat ters re ferred to  i t  in  terms of  

proclamat ion number 46 2003 publ ished in  the Government  

Gazet te number 248276 of  23 May 2003 the proclamat ion 

which set  out  mat ters that  fa i led wi th in  i ts  purv iew as wel l  

as any mat te r  –  any other  mat te r  re ferred to  i t  by the  NDPP.  

 The aff idavi ts  o f  Dr  Pretor ius,  Mathenjwa and 

Maema deal  wi th  mat te rs that  were  referred to  the PCLU in  

terms of  what  is  re ferred to  as the Omnibus Cause.   The 10 

Omnibus Cause re lates to  any mat ter  that  the NDPP refers 

to  the PCLU for  invest igat ion and prosecut ion.  

 Reference Group.   Wi th the permiss ion of  the  

Min is te r  o f  Just ice and Const i tu t ional  Deve lopment  

Mathenjwa was seconded to the Reference Group that  was 

assembled by the  Min is te r  o f  Pol i ce Nath i  Nhleko to  advise 

h im on d iverse mat ters wi th in  h is  min is t ry.   The Reference 

Group had Terms of  Reference which def ine i ts  code.  

 Among the i tems fa l l ing under the scope was the  

a l leged involvement  of  the pol i ce members in  i l legal  20 

rendi t ion.   Mathenjwa was tasked to look in to documents  

that  conta in a l legat ions re la t ing rendi t ion and br ie f  

members of  the group on that .  

 In  the process of  deal ing wi th  those documents  

Mathenjwa real i sed that  the rendi t ion mat ter  was being 
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invest igated by the IPID and the invest igat ing off i cer  was 

Innocent  Khuba.   The group fe l t  the need to meet  wi th  

Khuba and requested Hadebe who was the convenor of  the 

RG to arrange same.  

 Hadebe ar ranged the meet ing and McBr ide at tended 

and br ie fed the meet ing about  the rendi t ion.   Mathenjwa ’s  

v iew was that  McBr ide ’s v iew had noth ing to  do wi th  the 

mer i ts  o f  the case they were appointed to  advise the  

min is te r  on.  

 Members of  the Reference Group were made to s ign 10 

conf ident ia l i t y  c lause.   Secondment  of  Maema and 

Mathenjwa to PCLU,  v is  a v isa Nxasana ’s ev idence before 

the commission.   

 Maema and Mathenjwa at  the t ime that  they were 

seconded to the PCLU they were s t i l l  deal ing wi th  the Cator 

Manor mat te r.   They both then say the a l legat ions made by  

Nxasana that  the  commission to  the – at  the commission  

that  Nxasana to ld  them that  there was no evidence against  

Booysen.  

 In  fact  when the prosecut ion team br ie fed Nxasana 20 

about  the Cator  Manor mat ter  a f te r  he had summoned them 

to h is  off ice,  he  in formed them that  whi le  s t i l l  in  pr ivate  

pract ice and represent ing c l ients  were being invest igated by  

Cator  Manor as VC Nxasana to ld  Peter  George accused 

number 3 and Nico Cross accused number 18 that  the whole  
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s to ry would eventual l y  catch up wi th  them.  

 The prosecut ion team never  had an opportuni ty  to  

present  a prosecut ion memorandum before Nxasana such 

that  Nxasana wi l l  be  aware of  the  ev idence in  the  docket  

and thus fo rm the v iew that  there  was no evidence against  

Booysen.  

 Prosecut ion of  Paul  O’Sul l ivan.   A l l  mat ters involv ing  

O’Sul l i van were.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Math ibedi .   I  just  want  

to  ment ion that  wi th  regard to  Mr Nxasana I  do in tend to  10 

deal  wi th  h is  ev idence in  the commission repor t  insofar  as  

a l legat ions he has made main ly  re la t ing to  the  former  

President .  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so I  do not  th ink I  would deal  wi th  

that  aspect  that  may re late to  what  Genera l  Booysen says 

and some of  the mat te rs but  I  just  ment ion that  a l though i t  

fa l ls  under a law enforcement  agencies,  I  do in tend deal ing 

wi th  i t  f rom an angle that  does not  re la te to  mat ters such as  

what  Mr Booysen – Genera l  Booysen is  saying here .   So – 20 

so I  just  ment ion that .   I  do not  th ink i t  should affec t  any of  

your  c l ients.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Chai rperson we have set  out  three  
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cases that  – tha t  re la tes to  Mr O’Sul l i van and refusal  to  

charge Gamenyane Pretor ius Cent ra l  case 868/11/2016.   

This mat te r  re la tes to  a case that  was opened by McBr ide 

a l leg ing that  Mr Israel  Gamenyane – Gamenyane was the  

act ing  head of  IP ID mismanaged f i les  of  the IPID.   The 

mat te r  was refer red to  Advocate A lb ie Leonard SC Leonard 

who decl ined to  prosecute Gamenyane which  Baloy i  

concur red.  

 Chai rperson whi ls t  on th is  aspect  i t  is  very  

in terest ing to  no te that  despi te  Advocate Leonard being  10 

involved in  th is  mat ter  he is  not  be ing refer red to  as those –  

as one of  those prosecutors tha t  are capture e i ther  for  

po l i t i ca l  o r  fo r  cor rupt  reasons whi ls t  Baloy i  who is  involved 

in  th is  mat te r  is  be ing referred to  as one of  those who are  

capture for  e i ther  po l i t i ca l  or  corrup t  reasons.  

 This c lear ly  demonst rates se lect i ve  condemnat ion of  

some of  the you know impl icated o ff ic ia ls  that  – that  we are  

at tending to .   So that  we are represent ing.  

 K idnapping,  defeat ing the ends of  just ice,  contempt  

of  cour t  charges against  the pol i ce off icers who ar rested 20 

O’Sul l i van and Trent ,  Col in  Dawood and others.  

 Baloy i  decl ined to  prosecute Dawood and others for  

the charges of  k idnapping,  thef t  o f  ce l l  phone and imi ta t ion.   

Abrahams agreed wi th  the decis ion  that  Baloy i  took.  

 Prosecut ion of  Glyn is  Breytenbach.   Chai rperson 
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there i s  a  sect ion  that  we are extensive ly  deal ing wi th  that  I  

am not  go ing to  read th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Th is b r ie f  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   And the prosecut ion of  J iba.   Mogat le  

draf ted an opin ion and refused to prosecute J iba fo r  

defeat ing the ends of  just i ce and f raud which charges were  

premised on the f ind ing made by Gorven J when he found 

that  by fa i l ing to  respond to a l legat ions made in  the a ff idavi t  10 

of  Booysen she was mendacious.   Mogat le  was of  the v iew 

that  the state w i l l  not  be able to  p rove the e lement  of  

in tent ion which is  an e lement  for  both charges.  

 Mogat le ’s  op in ion was premised on the fact  that  

when J iba deposed to the aff idavi t  f i le  in  the Review 

Appl icat ion inst i tu ted by Booysen the prosecut ion team had 

furn ished counsel  for  the NPA wi th a l l  necessary facts.  

 The prosecut ion team in tu rn made statements to  the  

effect  that  when they rever t  the a ff idavi t  o f  Booysen they 

prepared a memorandum for  NPA’s counsel  to  prepare a  20 

supplementary af f idavi t  to  deal  w i th  the issues ra ised in  

Booysen ’s aff idav i t .  

 For  reasons known to the prosecut ions team the NPA 

counsel  d id  not  prepare the supplementary aff idavi t  and 

thus fu l l  facts were not  p laced before Gorven J.  
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 The fa i lu re to  prepare a supplementary aff idavi t  was 

a lso considered by Smi th SC,  the DPP North West  who a lso 

decl ined to  prosecute J iba on the basis that  Gorven J d id  

not  have the  fu l l  facts before h im and that  J iba  had no 

in tent ion to  mis lead the cour t  and thus d id not  per ju re  

hersel f .  

 Despi te  coming to  the same conclus ion as  Mogat le  

Smi th i s  not  label led par t  o f  the co group of  captured 

advocates.   

 Chai rperson what  I  would l i ke to  say about  Advocate  10 

Smi th i s  that  he is  one of  the most  senior  and exper ienced –  

you know prosecutors that  the NPA ever  had.   Tenga the 

then DP Northern  Cape a lso decl ined to  p rosecute J iba on  

the grounds that  the process to  issue the racketeer ing  

charges was procedura l  despi te  th is  fact .  

 Tenga fo rmed par t  o f  the De Kock group panel  that  

cr i t i c i sed J iba ’s  decis ion to  issue the racketeer ing  

author isat ion.   The repor t  does not  show whether  Tenga 

d isc losed that  she had fu rn ished an opin ion cont rary to  the  

f ind ings made in  the De Kock Repor t .  20 

 Tenga is  not  re ferred to  as par t  o f  the prosecutors  

that  are captured for  e i ther  po l i t i ca l  o r  corrupt  reasons in  

respect  o f  the Cator  Manor mat ter.   The only cr i t i c i sm 

level led against  her  is  that  she chai red the d isc ip l inary  

hear ing of  the IPID’s spokesperson Moses Gamene.    
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 Chai rperson unfor tunate ly  we wi l l  never  have an 

opportuni ty  of  knowing why Advocate Smi th and Advocate  

Tenga were not  condemned as i t  happened wi th  the NPA 

off ic ia ls  that  we are represent ing because they are  in  the 

same boat  as them.   They are in  the same category as them 

Chai rperson.    

 Chai rperson Advocate Ramaimela wi l l  take over  f rom 

here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Thank you – thank you Mr 

Math ibedi  thank you.  10 

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC:   Thanks Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  i t   

ADV RAMAIMELA:   I t  is  Ms Ramaimela Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   P lease go ahead.   Welcome.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.   

Chai rperson you would have noted that  i t  took  my leader 

over  th i r ty  minutes to  read I  th ink about  twenty-e igh t  pages 

and we have been granted only two hours.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   So what  I  in tend to  do Cha i rperson 20 

instead of  reading because my por t ion which deals wi th  the 

rendi t ion and the defeat ing/obst ruct ing the course of  just ice 

runs over  approximate ly  55 pages.   I  w i l l  speak to  the 

paragraphs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV RAMAIMELA:   Where there  is  a  need to emphasise  

perhaps,  I  can read those in to the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   But  as I  have observed the Cha i rperson 

has the summary in  f ront  o f  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   And I  t rust  obviously the Chai rperson 

has read i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no that  is  f ine.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  a lso there w i l l  be – they wi l l  become 

publ ic  documents and they wi l l  be avai lab le.   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Can I  just  enqui re i s  i t  just  the  recordal  

or  inc lud ing the  aff idavi ts  that  do run in to hundreds of  

pages tak ing in to account  that  the rendi t ion has seven lever  

arch f i les as a docket  and one leaver  a rch f i le  for  de feat ing 

and obst ruct ing the course of  just ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The aff idavi ts  wi l l  be publ ic  as wel l .  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV RAMAIMELA:   And I  may just  proceed.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Chai rperson you wi l l  f ind the  por t ion  

that  deals wi th  the rendi t ion at  page 129 of  th is  recordal .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  go ahead.  
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ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you Chai rperson.   And the way 

that  th is  por t ion is  draf ted i t  is  f i rs t  i t  deals wi th  the opening 

remarks.   Those opening remarks run f rom paragraph 303 to 

paragraph 305.   The importance thereof  Chai rperson is  just  

to  request  that  the judgment  of  Act ibo logad Huss le and 

another  versus Tr iomed which  was penned by Nugent  JA as  

he then was reminded a l l  o f  us that  in  law context  is  

everyth ing and he referred to  the judgment  where Lord  

Steyn in  R versus Secretary o f  State fo r  the  Home 

Department  Expar te dai l y  made that  remark.  10 

 Nugent  JA went  on fur ther  and sa id :  

“And so i t  is  when i t  comes to const ru ing the language used 

in  documents whether  the documents be i t  a  s ta tute or  

cont ract . ”  

 So the purpose of  that  Chai rperson was just  to  

request  that  when these a l legat ions were made there  had to  

be a proper  context  wi th in  which  they were made and 

because the prosecutors vers ions wi l l  not  – the prosecutors 

cross-examinat ion and the i r  test imony wi l l  not  be presented 

to  the commission  that  context  obviously i s  miss ing because 20 

the publ ic  on ly has a vers ion f rom only one s ide.  

 What  my learned senior  d id  was to  read a summary 

of  the rendi t ion.   I t  is  a  very long docket  Chai rperson so 

what  we wi l l  t ry  and do is  to  present  at  least  some of  the 

ev idence that  was there.   L ike  the Chai rperson has 
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recorded and we have referred in  the recordal  tha t  dur ing 

the leading of  that  ev idence I  remember i t  was that  o f  Mr 

Sesoko where you sa id to  Mr Sesoko that  you would prefer  

to  have the prosecutors come before you and te l l  you what  

ev idence they had.   You would a lso would have loved to 

look at  the dockets to  see what  exact ly  was at  –  ins ide  

those dockets so that  you can determine whether  the  

decis ions they took at  the t ime were wi th in  the bounds of  

the law.  

 Be that  as i t  may Chai rperson,  we f ind ourselves 10 

here wi thout  the benef i t  o f  having to  do a l l  o f  that  because 

of  operat ional  const ra in t .  

 Now that  Chai rperson is  the opening remarks.  

 Then at  paragraph 306 which has numerous sub-

paragraphs a l l  the way to  page 133 Chai rperson th is  i s  just  

a  ro le  – a roadmap to g ive the reader of  the por t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   As to  what  is  go ing to  be set  out  in  the  

summary.   We to ld  you that  we w i l l  deal  wi th  the genera l  

overv iew,  the ro le  of  Advocate  Mosin i .   How he got  20 

appointed to  guide the invest igat ion.   The invest igat ions 

conducted by Mr  Khuba.   You no doubt  remember  that  he  

test i f ied to  i t .   Then we te l l  you the numerous IPID repor ts  

that  had been prepared by Mr Khuba.   Then the appo intment  

of  Mr  McBr ide.   Then Mr McBr ide handing over  the docket  to  
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Mr Nxasana,  the Werksmans invest igat ion – i ts  repor t  and 

the t ranscr ip ts .   And then the ro le  of  Dr  Pretor ius and 

Advocate Maema.   Perhaps i f  I  can just  take a step back 

Chai rperson.  

 The rendi t ion  mat ter  ran  through var ious 

prosecutors.   Advocate Mosing ass is ted in  the invest igat ion  

that  was h is  ro le .   Then af ter  the  invest igat ion had been 

concluded and the repor t  o f  January 2014 was prepared by  

Mr Khuba and handed in  Advocate Mosing fo l lowed the 

necessary processes of  in fo rming the then act ing NDPP 10 

Advocate J iba  and – about  the conclus ion and then the  

docket  was taken to South Gauteng DPP off ice as i t  was the 

off ice which would have jur isd ic t ion because there was 

cent ra l i sat ion process going on and i t  would be g iven the 

jur isd ic t ion.  

 So instead of  tak ing i t  to  North Gauteng they took i t  

to  South Gauteng.   I t  was g iven to  Advocate Chauke the  

DPP who a l located i t  to  Advocate Van Zyl .  

 A l l  o f  that  is  set  out  la ter  on but  just  to  g ive the  

sequence of  the  people who took par t  in  what  has been 20 

termed the rendi t ion saga.  

 Then obviously at  that  s tage i t  is  no  longer wi th  

Advocate Mosing.   When i t  is  in  the off i ce of  Advocate Zias  

Van Zyl  Mr  McBr ide gets  appointed in  March 2014 the 3 r d  I  

th ink was – he takes over  off i ce on  the 6 t h  o f  March.  
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 Immediate ly  on tak ing off i ce he inst ructs Mr Khuba 

and Mr Angus to  go and ret r ieve the docket .   They go and 

ret r ieve the docket  Chai rperson then the repor t  o f  March 

2014 is  prepared.  

 That  repor t  we a l l  know by now that  i t  changed the  

recommendat ions of  charg ing Genera l  Dramat  and S ib iya  

and only recommended that  Capta in Malu leke and other  

jun ior  members of  the SAPS be charged.  

 Then instead of  re turn ing the docket  to  DPP South  

Gauteng the docket  gets taken to Mr Nxasana on the 10 

inst ruct ion of  Mr McBr ide.  

 Mr Nxasana s i ts  on the docket  for  lack of  a  bet te r  

word Chai rperson for  e ight  months .   Apr i l  2014 a l l  the way 

to  January 2015 wi thout  a l locat ing  the docket .    

 Then u l t imate ly  the docket  gets taken to Advocate  

Mzinyath i  and Baloy i  and that  i s  where Advocate  Baloy i  

comes in .  

 Later  a f ter  they had read the docket ,  they take i t  

back to  Mr Nxasana who now takes i t  to  South Gauteng.   In  

South Gauteng i t  appears that  i t  was a l located to  Advocate 20 

Roberts.  

 A t  some point  the docket  leaves South Gauteng 

again f inds i t s  way back to  Advocate Baloy i .   But  tha t  is  the  

web of  expla in ing  the ro le  p layers Chai rperson.  

 Now in  the recordal  Chai rperson at  page 133 which   
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is  paragraph 301 we remind the Chai rperson of  the 

ev idence of  Mr McBr ide which evidence was led on the 11 t h  

o f  Apr i l  2019 just  to  p lace on record the re levance thereof .  

 Chai rperson you wi l l  recal l  that  Mr  McBr ide test i f ied  

and sa id that  th is  rendi t ion f ic t ion is  an Amer ican term in  

the South Af r i can law we do not  have someth ing ca l led  

rendi t ion.   To the  extent  that  we do not  have such a cr ime 

Chai rperson Mr McBr ide is  correct .  

 But  what  Mr McBr ide fa i led to  te l l  th is  commission  

and the publ ic  a t  large Chai rperson is  what  exact ly  is  i t  that  10 

the people  who were accused of  having taken par t  in  

rendi t ion d id.  

 Chai rperson at  309 we quote por t ions of  your  

engagements wi th  Mr McBr ide and I  read you –  af ter  a  

ser ies of  quest ions f rom the evidence leader and Mr  

McBr ide ’s response the Chai rperson asked Mr McBr ide:  

“What  is  i t  that  they were a l leged to have actual l y  done that  

was referred to  being rendi t ion –  what  was i t?   Just  the 

actual  acts as you understood them that  was referred to  as  

rendi t ion – what  was i t?”  20 

 Now Chai rperson the recordal  and the evidence o f  

the impl icated prosecutors who dea l t  wi th  th is  mat ter  a l l  the 

way f rom Advocate Mosing to  Advocate  Boloy i  i s  that  Mr 

McBr ide fa i led to  answer th is  quest ion.   The record does 

not  conta in an answer of  what  is  i t  that  he understood the  
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actual  acts to  be rendi t ion.  

 Chai rperson we t r ied as best  as we can to 

summarise seven lever  a rch f i les to  condense the facts of  

what  were the actual  acts that  const i tu ted th is  rendi t ion.   

We set  that  ou t  Chai rperson f rom paragraph 312 to  

paragraph 314 wi th  i ts  sub-paragraphs but  because of  the 

importance Chai rperson at  least  to  the prosecutors who 

have been label led a l l  sor ts  of  th ings of  having charged for  

rendi t ion or  the  defeat ing the  ends of  just ice which  

emanates f rom th is  rendi t ion.   I  w i l l  not  be doing jus t ice i f  I  10 

just  do not  read these paragraphs.   The rest  o f  the 

paragraphs I  wi l l  speak to  Chai rperson.  

 Thank you very  much Chai rperson.   Now I  am 

reading f rom paragraph 311 – 311 says:  

“Accord ing to  the  aff idavi t  o f  Mosing the actual  ac ts that  

were refer red as rendi t ion are the fo l lowing. ”  

 Now there fo l lows the summary of  a l l  the statements,  

the documents that  had been obta ined by  Khuba w i th  the  

assis tance of  the  others to  set  out  the cr ime that  had been 

commit ted.   In  the docket  Chai rperson there are statements  20 

which are to  the effect  that  a f ter  a  meet ing between 

Genera ls Dramat  S ib iya had wi th  the i r  Z imbabwean 

counterpar ts  somet ime in  August  2010 where they amongst  

others agreed to  assis t  each other  wi th  c ross-border  c r imes 

and ext radi t ion Zimbabwean pol ice ar r ived at  the Bei tbr idge 
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border  post  and requested ent ry in to South Af r i ca as they 

were due to have a meet ing wi th  Dramat .  

 A pol i ce off icer  Madi longo who McBr ide incorrect ly  

re fers to  as a c r ime in te l l igence o ff icer  te lephoned two of  

h is  super iors in fo rming them that  about  the presence of  the  

Zimbabwean pol ice off icers.  

 Madi longo’s super iors inst ructed  h im to d i rect l y  

te lephone Dramat  and to seek h is  response.   Madi longo 

d i rect ly  te lephoned Dramat  on the ce l l  phone number 

provided to  h im by the Zimbabwean pol i ce off icers.  10 

 Dramat  then ins t ructed Madi longo to permi t  the  

Zimbabwean pol i ce off icers ent ry  in to the Republ ic .   The 

Zimbabwean pol i ce  off i cers arr i ved at  the off ices of  the 

DPCI  in  S i lver ton  and were in t roduced by Malu leke to  h is  

superv isor  L ieutenant  Colonel  Verster.   The importance of  

ment ion ing th is  Chai rperson is  that  o ther  than Malu leke who 

is  an accused person there is  a  statement  of  Colonel  

Verster  who conf i rms that  Zimbabwean pol i ce were 

in t roduced to her  by Malu leke.  

 The Zimbabwean pol i ce off icers had a meet ing wi th  20 

Dramat  the next  day.   In  the docket  there  is  ev idence of  

s tatements and repor ts  that  ind icate that  indeed such a  

meet ing was held between Dramat  and the pol i ce.  

 Then af ter  that  meet ing Chai rperson an operat ion for  

the t rac ing and ar rest  o f  Zimbabwean Nat ionals commenced 
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on the evening that  the meet ing  was held.   Numerous 

wi tnesses deposed to aff idavi t s  conf i rming the presence of  

Zimbabwean pol ice off icers dur ing var ious operat ions.   The 

operat ions were conducted by Malu leke an accused in  the 

rendi t ion mat ter  and members of  the tact i ca l  operat ion  

management  sect ion refer red to  as  TOMS which  operat ions 

were a imed at  a rrested the Zimbabwean Nat ionals.  

 The mandate of  TOMS is  set  out  in  a document  in  

the docket  Chai rperson.   A f ter  each operat ion and the arrest  

o f  Zimbabwean Nat ionals Malu leke and the pol i ce off icers  10 

would personal ly  dr ive the arrested nat ionals to  Be i tbr idge 

border  post  and hand the arrested nat ionals Chai rperson to 

the Zimbabwean s ide of  the border.  

 Each t ime the handing over  was done no ext radi t ion  

or  deportat ion processes were fo l lowed.    

 I f  I  can just  pause here Chai rperson and remind the 

Chai rperson that  la ter  in  the summary the prosecutors refer  

the Chai rperson to a judgment  that  was in  – qui te  

in terest ing ly  penned by yoursel f  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  20 

ADV RAMAIMELA:   In  S versus – yes – Mohammed 

Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Where there was the issue of  ex – or  –  

of  ext radi t ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   And the const i tu t ional  cour t  sa id i f  you 

know that  the person that  you in tend to  ext radi te  may be 

k i l led you do not  do so.   I  do not  need to remind the  

Chai rperson of  that .   He knows i t  qu i te  wel l .  

 Now some I  cont inue reading Chai rperson.  

 Some of  the Zimbabwean Nat ionals  handed over  are  

a l leged to have been tor tured in  po l ice custody whi le  others  

were k i l led.   There is  a  statement  o f  one of  the persons who 

had been arrested in  the operat ions who had been taken 10 

over  to  the Zimbabwean s ide who said he had been tor tured 

and some of  the people that  had a lso been ar rested  were 

k i l led.  

 Now that  are the  acts Chai rperson par t  o f  the acts  

that  you were asking Mr McBr ide what  const i tu ted the  

rendi t ion.  

 Now I  cont inue Chai rperson wi th  the fo l lowing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  w i l l  –  le t  me just  ask someth ing and I  

wi l l  remember la ter  on to  make sure you are not  pre jud iced 

because of  these quest ions – the quest ions that  I  have 20 

asked you.   So I  am count ing the minutes so I  wi l l  add them 

at  the back.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Chai rperson in i t ia l l y  I  on ly  had twenty  

minutes now I  have had to cut  i t  down to ten minutes.   I  –  i f  

I  can just  ask i f  the Chai rperson asks me how much more 
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t ime would you need? 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  wi l l  l ook at  how much t ime I  am 

tak ing – I  am delay ing you and then I  wi l l  –  I  wi l l  add at  the 

end of  the two hours.   I  w i l l  add.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Chai rperson that  wi l l  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  w i l l  make sure you – I  wi l l  add to  make 

sure that  a t  the end you… 

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You – your  whole team does not  have less  

than two hours.   So in  the end you must  s t i l l  have the two 10 

hours so I  am going to  bear  in  mind when I  am asking you a  

quest ion.   So what  I  –  what  I  wanted to  ask is  for  just  some 

understanding.   Why – why was th is  mat te r  you know 

referred to  as a rendi t ion mat ter  in  a c r iminal  invest igat ion 

context  instead o f  just  the normal  cr imes that  we know i t  is  

murder,  i t  is  k idnapping,  i t  i s  whatever  –  whatever  do  – i s  

that  someth ing you know – is  that  someth ing you do not  

know? 

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Chai rperson the – I  th ink the  answer 

would l ie  in  the repor ts .   I f  –  i f  we had been g iven the  20 

opportuni ty.   A l l  the repor ts  of  the IPID nowhere do they 

speak about  rendi t ion.   They speak about  k idnapping 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   And they speak about  assaul t  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV RAMAIMELA:   So the rendi t ion may have been a  term 

that  was co ined by the media when the – the a l legat ions 

sur faced.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   You would  note in  the summary 

Chai rperson la te r  on i f  I  can just  te l l  you even f rom 

paragraph 316 to paragraph 319.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   I t  is  a  very condensed summary of  the 

repor t  o f  the pol ice c iv i l ian secretar ia t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   The pol ice c iv i l ian secretar ia t  

invest igated th is  mat te r  a f te r  i t  had been repor ted.   I  th ink i t  

was in  the Sunday Times that  people were ext radi ted to  be  

k i l led in  Zimbabwe and then I  cannot  guess for  the media.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Perhaps to  se l l  the papers they ca l led i t  

rendi t ion.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Because tha t  was the term that  was 20 

used then everybody ca l led i t  that .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   But  in  the docket  – in  the IPID repor ts  

there is  no use of  the word rendi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  wi l l  –  I  th ink I  –  I  th ink I  wi l l  be  

correct  to  say i t  probably took three minutes so I  took th ree 

minutes of  your  t ime.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Chai rperson I  –  I  d id  – i t  was 11:02 now 

i t  is  11:05.   I  am keeping Chai rperson to h is  terms.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay proceed.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Thank you Chai rperson.   Now I  was at  

paragraph 314.7 which appears at  page 136.   One of  the 

v ic t ims Makawe S ibanda deposed to an aff idavi t  and stated  10 

that  when Malu leke paid h im a v is i t  a f ter  the ar rest  he  

in formed Malu leke that  Wi tness Ndaya – Wi tness is  the  

name of  a  person Chai rperson was k i l led by Z imbabwean 

pol i ce whi ls t  in  custody which is  what  had happened af ter  

they were handed over  to  Z imbabwean pol i ce.  

 Malu leke a l legedly to ld  S ibanda that  he knew they 

would k i l led in  Zimbabwe because that  i s  what  happens 

when one k i l ls  a  pol i ce off icer  in  Zimbabwe.   The persons 

so handed to the Z imbabwean pol i ce were wanted in  

Zimbabwe for  the murder  of  a  Z imbabwean pol i ce off i cer  20 

Super in tendent  Chi t ikhobo.  

 Now Chai rperson f rom paragraph 349 wi th  i ts  subs i t  

is  a  summary of  the cooperat ion ’s  

CHAIRPERSON:   3  – 314.9? 

ADV RAMAIMELA:   314.9 indeed Chai rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   That  is  the summary of  the operat ions 

that  were conducted.   You wi l l  see at  314.9.1 i t  is  the f i rs t  

operat ion i t  was conducted on the  5 t h  o f  November  2010 i t  

appears at  page 136 Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  can see i t .  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Where four  Zimbabwean Nat ionals were 

ar rested and deta ined at  Or lando pol ice stat ion and then a 

few days la te r  two of  the Zimbabwean Nat ionals were  

i l legal ly  taken over  the border  and handed to the 10 

Zimbabwean pol ice whi le  the other  two Zimbabwean 

Nat ionals were dropped off  on the N14 f reeway.  

 Now two of  these persons were the  S ibanda Makawa 

that  I  just  re ferred to  above Chai rperson and he is  the one 

who deposed to an aff idavi t  which forms par t  o f  the docket .  

 And then a lso i f  I  can just  h igh l ight  that  the  

documents that  were used to hand over  these people the  

Home Affa i rs  documents were – I  wi l l  –  subsequent ly  p roved 

to have been fa ls i f ied and there is  ev idence in  the  docket  

f rom the off ic ia ls  of  the Department  of  Home Affa i rs  that  the 20 

documents that  were used were no longer in  use at  the t ime 

and most  important ly  a t  the t ime the DEZP which is  the  

Dispensat ion fo r  Zibabweans was in  p lace which prohib i ted 

the i r  deportat ion  for  be ing i l legal  immigrants at  that  t ime 

Chai rperson.  
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 Now at  sub 2 i t  i s  the second operat ion which was 

conducted on the  23r d  o f  November 2010.   The Zimbabwean 

Nat ional  who was ar rested  Richard  Chuma [?]  and he again  

was taken by Capta in Malu leke in  the company of  Warrant  

Off icer  Seleka of  TOMS to the  Zimbabwean pol ice at  

Bei tb r idge.    

 Then the next  sub is  sub 3 a th i rd  operat ion that  was 

conducted on the  11 t h  o f  January.   This th i rd  operat ion was 

conducted by Malu leke of  the Hawks wi th  the ass is tance 

Chai rperson of  Cr ime Inte l l igence gather ing.   Malu leke 10 

requested that  Cr ime Inte l l igence gather ing to  help wi th  the 

t rac ing of  Gordon Dube.  

 So to  the extent  that  there has been evidence before  

th is  commission Chai rperson pain t ing the invest igat ion of  

th is  mat ter  as a  Cr ime Inte l l igence led invest igat ion that  i s  

unt rue.   

 Yes,  there are  persons who were f rom Cr ime 

Inte l l igence.   A l l  these persons the i r  s tatements are in  the 

dockets and they expla in the ro le .  

 You wi l l  recal l  Madi longwe at  the  border  i s  not  a  20 

Cr ime Inte l l igence person.   There  is  a lso the a l legat ion by  

Mr McBr ide tha t  Mukangwe and Mahlangu who were  

conduct ing the invest igat ion before Khuba took over  were 

Cr ime Inte l l igence.   That  i s  a lso proven to be fa lse.   They 

were detect ives.    
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 And i t  is  on ly la ter  when Advocate  Mosing took over  

guid ing the invest igat ion that  he ra ised i t  w i th  Mukangwe 

and Mahlangu to say why is  the IPID not  involved in  th is  

invest igat ion?  And then they heeded h is  request .  

 Chai rperson would have noted that  on the 10 t h  o f  

September Mukangwe wrote to  IPID to say here  is  an  

invest igat ion can you take over  we are wi l l ing to  assis t .   Ms 

Cookie Mbeke in  October  2012 assigned Mr Khuba to  

establ ish a task team.   Mr Khuba took over  the invest igat ion 

and inc luded Mukangwe and Mahlangu who cont inued to  10 

invest igate.   A l l  o f  that  is  in  the  docket .   A l l  o f  that  is 

recorded in  the invest igat ion d ia ry Chai rperson.  

 Now to move on sub 3 i s  – I  ment ioned sub 3 

Chai rperson which is  the operat ion of  11 January 2011 

where Gordon Dube was arrested wi th  the assis tance of  

Technica l  Response Team commonly known at  TRT as wel l  

as Cr ime Inte l l igence Gather ing and again,  he was taken 

over  to  the border,  handed over  to  Zimbabwean pol ice.  

 Dur ing h is  ar rest  there had been a shootout  wi th  

pol i ce Chai rperson and a gun belonging to  the Zimbabwean 20 

Super in tendent  who had been k i l led was found in  h is  

possession.  

 Capta in Malu leke took th is  gun which the  

invest igat ing off i cer  in  the mat ter  o f  Dube needed as an 

exhib i t  for  the cr imes against  Dube in  South Af r i ca.   He took 
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i t  over  to  Zimbabwe Chai rperson therefore obst ruct ing the  

course of  that  o ther  invest igat ion.   We leave i t  that .   A l l  o f  

that  ev idence is  in  the docket  Chai rperson.    

 Now sub paragraph 4 is  the four th operat ion which  

commenced on the 26 t h  January 2011 and that  is  where a 

Zimbabwean Nat ional  by  the name of  Johnson Noyne [?]  

was arrested aga in wi th  the assis tance of  TRT and th is  is  

where  i t  is  s tated  that  he is  taken to S i l ver ton at  the  off ices 

of  the Hawks DPCI .   This i s  where some of  the statements  

ind icate that  Genera l  Dramat  came to the members and 10 

congratu lated them for  the success in  the operat ions.  

 Now Chai rperson – excuse me – those are the 

summaries of  the  operat ions.   When you turn the page over  

at  139 you wi l l  f ind as I  have a l ready refer red to  you 

paragraph 316 a l l  the way to  319 a t  page 139 to 140.   I t  is  

the summary of  the secretar ia t  o f  – le t  me just  make sure –  

the repor t  o f  the  Pol ice Civ i l ian Secretar ia t  Chai rperson.   

You wi l l  remember just  now I  just  sa id she invest igated 

because of  the repor ts  in  the media.   Then once she 

invest igated,  she a lso considered the repor ts  of  the DPCI  20 

that  had been g iven to  the Min is ter  when he was being  

asked quest ions in  the Nat ional  Counci l  o f  Provinces and in  

the Nat ional  Assembly Par l iament  want ing to  know what  

exact ly  is  happening because th is  has potent ia l  for  a  

d ip lomat ic  cr i s is  because fore ign nat ionals a re involved and 
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proper  processes are not  fo l lowed.   

 Now the Min is te r  was g iven in fo rmat ion notes to  

respond to Par l iament  and these notes were prepared on 

in format ion that  had been g iven by the DPCI .  

 The Pol ice Secretar ia t  conceded that  the vers ions in  

these notes was quest ionable and cont radicto ry and then 

she recommended that  the IPID or  a ret i red judge 

invest igates.  

 Now we do not  know why the mat ter  was 

invest igated by Mokangwe and h is  co l league instead of  10 

going to  the ret i red judge or  IP ID d i rect ly  as recommended 

by the Pol ice Secretar ia t .  

 Be that  as i t  may I  have expla ined i t  was 

invest igated by  Mokangwe and Mahlangu who af te r  

obta in ing few documents we set  them out  Chai rperson that  

a t  the t ime that  they approached Advocate J iba to  assign a  

prosecutor  to  ass is t  there was about  seven statements and 

three other  documents in  the docket  and then Advocate J iba 

appointed Advocate Mosing to  assis t .   That  –  a l l  o f  that  

s ta r ts  at  paragraph 320.  20 

 Then you wi l l  see that  we set  out  a t  322 and 323 the  

statements of  the  four  Cr ime Inte l l igence off i cers who were  

seconded at  the t ime Chai rperson to TOMS which was led  

by Genera l  S ib iya .  

 Now a l l  th is  ment ion of  Cr ime Inte l l igence we 
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assume is  the basis on which i t  is  a l leged that  i t  was a 

Cr ime Inte l l igence dr iven invest iga t ion.   But  we a lso  submi t  

that  i t  is  bet rayed by the object ive facts that  a re  in  the  

docket  and a s lanted vers ion has been p laced before th is  

commission and to ld  to  the publ i c .  

 Then Chai rperson a lso what  was in  the docket  a t  the 

t ime were three o ther  s tatements o f  the v ic t ims of  the ar rest  

and you wi l l  recal l  Makawe had been taken to Z imbabwe 

tor tu red and then made h is  way back.  

 Now wi th th is  ev idence i t  is  not  enough but  there i s  10 

some sor t  o f  ev idence which points to  a cr ime of  a  person 

being ar rested fo r  be ing an i l legal  immigrant  taken not  by 

Home Affa i rs  and not  through ext radi t ion by a Hawks pol ice 

off icer  to  the border  to  Zimbabwe.    

 The prosecutors  have a duty as my senior  has 

referred to  the decis ions and the prosecut ing act  to  assis t  

the pol ice to  invest igate and where they ident i f y  a  pr ima 

fac ie offence – not  a  pr ima fac ie – a what  is  –  yes,  they 

have a duty to  take the mat te r  to  cour t .   

 Now Chai rperson in terest ing ly  enough Mokangwe 20 

asked Advocate Mosing – can you issue warrants o f  arrest?  

We ment ion that  a t  paragraph 325.  

 Then Advocate Mosing says:  No I  cannot  i ssue 

warrants of  arrest .   These invest igat ions are very  

incomplete.   There are numerous quest ions that  ar ise f rom 
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the few statements that  a re in  here .   Go and invest igate a l l  

these other  i ssues.  

 He sets them out .   They are in  the pol i ce d iary.   

Mokangwe and h is  co l league go and invest igate.   La ter  on I  

have stated Chai rperson Khuba gets appointed.  

 Khuba’s appointment  s tar ts  at  paragraph 328.   A t  

para – at  page 142.   And a l l  these pages Chai rperson we 

set  out  the steps that  Mr Khuba took when he invest igated.   

When he obta ined the wi tness statements.   When he 

obta ined the documents of  Home Affa i rs  which shows that  10 

proper  processes were not  fo l lowed.   When he obta ined the 

DZP and th is  led  to  Mr  Khuba prepar ing h is  repor t  o f  22 

Apr i l  2013.  

 So the repor t  o f  January 2014 was not  the f i rs t  

repor t .   He had been prepar ing in ter im repor ts  g iv ing them 

to the then act ing  Execut ive Di rector  Ms Cookie Mbeke.    

 The f i rs t  repor t  we set  out  a  summary of  i t  

Chai rperson at  336 i t  appears at  page 145.  We set  out  the 

ev idence that  Mr Khuba had obta ined at  that  s tage 

obviously inc lud ing that  which a l ready exis ted  in  the 20 

document .  

 Of  importance we a lso set  ou t  Chai rperson a t  

paragraph 337 and 338 that  there i s  a  statement  of  –  what  

is  h is  name – Neeth l ing who was at tached to the DPCI  

Provinc ia l  Off i ces in  Gauteng.   The importance of  the 
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s ta tement  of  Neeth l ing Chai rperson is  that  a t  least  here is  

somebody who is  not  a t tached to Cr ime Inte l l igence.   Who 

a lso cor roborates  what  the people who had been seconded 

to TOMS but  f rom Cr ime Inte l l igence sa id?  He a lso says 

that  he had inst ructed h is  jun ior  Selepe to escor t  Malu leke 

when one of  the suspects Thuma was dr iven to  Bei tb r idge.  

 So that  is  very important  ev idence Chai rperson.   I t  

f inds i ts  way in  the IPID repor t  o f  2013 Apr i l .  

 Then f rom paragraph 341 a l l  the way to  paragraph 

347 Chai rperson i t  is  an IPID repor t  o f  2  Ju ly  2013 where 10 

Mr Khuba accounts for  a l l  the invest igat ions that  he has 

conducted and to answer the Chai rperson’s  quest ions 

ear l ie r  a t  342 Khuba concluded that  repor t  wi th  possib le  

charges of  k idnapping,  cont ravent ion of  immigrat ion act ,  

forgery and assaul t .   There is  no rendi t ion  there 

Chai rperson.  

 Now Advocate  Most ing is  s t i l l  gu id ing the  

invest igat ion  He prepares a memorandum to account  to  h is  

super iors.   I t  is  dated 7 Ju ly  2013.    

 Then the invest igat ion cont inues Chai rperson.   Mr  20 

Khuba prepares another  repor t .   I t  is  dated 4  September  

2013.   We set  out  the summary of  that  repor t  Chai rperson at  

paragraphs 348 to paragraphs 350.  

 And then thereaf ter  Chai rperson i t  is  another  repor t  

o f  the IPID.   I t  is  dated 22 October 2013.   Excuse me.    
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 Now Chai rperson in  th is  repor t  there are notes f rom 

Advocate Mosing who ra ises cer ta in  quest ion wi th  Mr Khuba 

to say what  about  th is  – fo l low th is  aspect  up – fo l low that  

one up and when you record your  annexures,  p lease put  an 

exhib i t  number l ike you A1,  A2.   He is  gu id ing the  

invest igat ion.   He is  not  invest igat ing.   Mr Khuba is  

invest igat ing.   I t  is  a  very h igh-prof i le  mat te r.   I t  invo lves 

genera ls  in  the SAPS so i t  is  impor tant  that  you know 

proper work  be done and that  those who are responsib le be 

held to  account .  10 

 So that  is  the ro le  of  Advocate Mosing in  the whole o 

ca l led rendi t ion saga Chai rperson.   And then comes the 

repor t  o f  22 January 2014.  That  you wi l l  f ind at  page 154 

Chai rperson.   I t  s ta r ts  paragraph 361 to 364.   I t  sets out  

what  the repor t  was a l l  about  and you wi l l  recal l  

Chai rperson when the evidence was led before you that  th is  

repor t  recommended that  Genera ls Dramat  and S ib iya a lso  

be charged together  wi th  the  other  jun io r  o ff ic ia ls  

Chai rperson.  

 Then Advocate Mosing prepares a  memorandum of  20 

October – of  –  I  beg your  pardon 14 February 2014 where  

the docket  gets referred to  South Gauteng.   I  have a l ready 

to ld  you that  facts Chai rperson.   You wi l l  remember  when i t  

gets taken to South Gauteng and then i t  gets a l located to  

Advocate Zias Van Zyl  f rom whom Mr Khuba and Angus 
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re t r ieved the docket .    

 Then in  paragraph 371 Chai rperson a l l  the way to  

paragraph 386 we set  out  that  i t  is  qu i te  in te rest ing that  Mr  

McBr ide gets appointed on the 3 r d  o f  March that  you f ind at  

371.   And immediate ly  upon h is  appointment  Chai rperson he 

is  a l ready phoning Angus on the 5 t h  o f  March.   That  you wi l l  

f ind at  paragraph 375 and he  is  inst ruct ing Khuba to say,  I  

want  a br ie f ing.   Khuba br ie fs  h im then he wants the  docket  

to  be upl i f ted.  

 And he is  saying that  the ev idence in  the docket  10 

must  be rev iewed.   This i s  a  person who has been o ff ice for  

mere ly two days and a l ready he is  asking for  a  rev iew of  the  

ev idence.   He does not  say I  want  to  see what  the ev idence 

is  and then af ter  he has read seven lever  arch f i les,  he says 

ja ,  no actual l y  go  and rev iew th is ,  that  and the other  on the 

repor t .  

 You wi l l  a lso recal l  Chai rperson f rom the evidence 

that  Mr McBr ide ’s  vers ion has been consistent  that  he never  

saw the January 2014 repor t .   He only was to ld  about  i t .   He 

actual ly  i f  my memory serves me wel l ,  he saw i t  the next  20 

year  af te r  Genera l  Dramat  had been suspended.  

 Be that  as i t  may Chai rperson a l l  o f  that  is  in  the  

docket .   A l l  o f  that  is  in  the aff idavi t s  and what  th is  i s  is  

mere ly a summary where  we t r ied  to  point  to  the  

Chai rperson that  when you have regard to  the probabi l i t ies  
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what  had been happening  here does not  seem to be above 

board.  

 You cannot  come on the 6 t h  o f  February on the 18 t h  

work or  an invest igat ion that  had been conducted over  a  

year  changes and then of  importance Chai rperson a lso is  

that  a f te r  the change of  that  repor t  instead of  i t  be ing taken 

back to  Advocate  Zias Van Zyl  where i t  was taken f rom i t  

gets taken to Mr Nxasana.  

 Now Mr Nxasana instead of  e i ther  tak ing  a  decis ion  

which he can he does not  take i t .   Nei ther  does  he  take i t  10 

to  any other  prosecutor  to  read i t  and take a dec is ion or  

make a recommendat ion.  

 He s i ts  qu iet l y  e ight  months.  In  that  e ight  months  

Chai rperson you wi l l  note in  the recordal  Dr  Pretor ius sa id  

he considered tha t  together  wi th  Mr  Maema when they were 

charg ing or  tak ing a decis ion to  charge for  defeat ing the 

ends of  just ice that  in  that  e ight  months Mr McBr ide is  

g iv ing media repor ts .   There are  quest ions in  the publ i c  

domain what  has happened?  Mr McBr ide says,  Genera ls 

Dramat  and Genera l  S ib iya have been exonerated by the  20 

IPID.   

 The prosecutors take ser ious except ion to  the word  

in  fact  to  the use of  the word exonerated.   Only a cour t  can 

exonerate.   The IPID makes recommendat ions.  

 Now they are of  the considered v iew and the f i rm 
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be l ie f  that  in  the docket  no evidence just i f ied the changing 

of  the recommendat ions.   In  fact  i f  regard is  had to  the 

invest igat ion d ia ry Chai rperson f rom the t ime that  the  

docket  was upl i f ted f rom Advocate  Van Zy l  to  the t ime i t  i s  

taken to Mr Nxasana only three new ent r ies are made.  

 Those ent r ies i t  is  the repor t  o f  the Civ i l ian  

Secretary.   There  is  a lso a repor t  o f  –  i f  I  can just  re f resh 

my memory Chai rperson.   There is  a lso a repor t  o f  what  has 

been referred to  as an exper t  who – whose expert i se is  not  

to ld  but  what  she d id i s  that  she examined the statement  of  10 

one of  the key wi tnesses being Madi longwa who a l lowed the  

Zimbabwean pol i ce ent ry in to the Republ ic  and sa id that  the 

statement  of  Mad i longwa is  unre l iab le because Madi longwa 

uses f ive pronouns in  one sentence wi th  the greatest  o f  

respect  Chai rperson Madi longwa is  a Venda speaking pol i ce  

off icer  just  as I  am a Tswana speaking advocate.  

 When your  mother  tongue is  in  ( ind is t inct )  and you 

are wr i t ing in  another  language you are bound to use 

pronouns and not  wr i te  to  the sat is fact ion of  Annemar ie Van 

Staaden who quest ioned Madi longwa’s statement .  20 

 Now le t  –  the prosecutors are of  the v iew that  tha t  

s tatement  could not  just i fy  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  just  wanted to  – I  just  wanted to  – to  

remind you.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   To remind me.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And your  co l leagues that  I  am not  

cont ro l l ing how long you take.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Oh yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  leave that  to  you and your  team.    

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  am not  go ing to  say stop.   So i t  is  

between you and your  co l leagues.  

ADV RAMAIMELA:   Between me and my team. 

CHAIRPERSON:   How long you take ja .  

ADV RAMAIMELA SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  rea l i se  tha t  I  10 

have taken long.   I f  I  can  jus t  take  the  Cha i rperson qu ick l y  

to  –  I  have a l ready spoken about  Ms Nxasana ,  to  the  

invest iga t ion  conducted by  Werksmans.   Cha i rperson,  you 

w i l l  see  tha t  f rom page 166,  paragraph 400,  we have se t  

ou t  the  invest iga t ions o f  Werksmans.    

 And then a t  page  170,  paragraph 408,  we have se t  

ou t  the  in te rv iews tha t  Werksmans conducted w i th  Mr  

Khuba and we have po in ted ,  Cha i rperson,  to  what  the  

prosecutors  cons ider  to  be  very  no tewor thy  por t ions  o f  the 

t ranscr ip t  where  Mr  Khuba appears  to  g ive  a  sense  tha t  the  20 

change o f  the  repor t  was a t  the  ins tance o f  Mr  McBr ide .   

And,  in  fac t ,  he  says he  was  ca l led  to  come and s ign  the  

repor t  and because he was to ld  tha t  h is  boss,  Mr  McBr ide ,  

was happy he cou ld  no t  quest ion  anyth ing  and there fore  

had to  s ign  the  repor t .   A l l  o f  tha t  i s  se t  ou t  in  the 
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parag raphs I  have jus t  re fe r red  the  Cha i rperson to .    

 Now,  Cha i rperson ,  f rom paragraph  412 a l l  the  way  

to  parag raph 425 ,  we se t  ou t  the  a f f idav i t s  o f  Dr  P re tor ius  

and  Advocate  Maya(?)  inso far  as  i t  per ta ins  to  the  

rend i t ion  –  to  the  de feat ing  o f  the  –  or  obst ruc t ing  the  

course  o f  jus t i ce .   Now what  they are  ask ing  is  t ha t  tha t  

background tha t  I  have jus t  se t  fo r th  i s  wha t  they 

cons idered.   I t  i s  the  contex t  tha t  Nugent  JA was re fer r ing  

to .    

 I t  may not  a l l  be  se t  ou t  in  the  one docket  o f  10 

de feat ing  bu t  tha t  i s  the  context  and because Mr  McBr ide  

had been go ing  on the  pub l i c  domain  say ing  there  is  no  

ev idence aga ins t  Ramat  and S ib iya .   He was obs t ruc t ing  

the  course  o f  jus t i ce  and together  w i th  tha t  ev idence and  

the  contents  o f  the  de feat ing  o f  the  ends o f  jus t i ce ,  they  

took a  dec i s ion  to  p rosecute  fo r  tha t  charge,  and i t  had 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  be ing  captured.    

 And then Cha i rperson f rom paragraph 426 to  

parag raph 445,  th is  i s  the  summary o f  the  ev idence or  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Advocate  Ba loy i  who is  dea l ing  w i th  the  20 

rend i t ion  mat te r.   He is  p rosecut ing  Capta in  Malu leka.   And 

as  I  have a l ready  in t imated or  my sen iors  a l ready i n t imated  

dur ing  the  in t roducto ry  par t ,  tha t  Dramat  and S ib iya  made 

rep resenta t ions and a  dec is ion  was taken to  p rov i s iona l l y  

w i thdraw the  charges aga ins t  them.    
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 I  do  no t  in tend to  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Advocate  Ba loy i  because the  ev idence tha t  he  has 

cons idered is  par t  o f  the  ev idence tha t  I  had been 

nar ra t ing  to  eh  Cha i rperson tha t  Advocate  Mos ing  ass i s ted  

Mr  Khuba when  he was invest iga t ing  the  mat te r.   

Cha i rperson,  on  tha t  sco re ,  tha t  conc ludes the  rend i t ion  

and defeat ing  the  ends.   I  take  my leader  o r  Advocate  

Mad langa w i l l  be  next .   Thank you very  much,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   Thank you,  thank you.  

ADV RAMAIMELA SC :    Thank you.   Mr  Mad langa.  10 

ADV MADLANGA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Mad langa.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing ,  good morn ing .   A re  you  

ready?  

ADV MADLANGA :    I  am ready,  yes ,  Cha i rperson .   I  am 

jus t  s t rugg l ing  to  ge t  my p i c tu re  on  the  screen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  we can see you.   Now we  do not  

see you.   Now we  see you.    

ADV MADLANGA :    You can see me? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  can see you now.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing .  

ADV MADLANGA :    Cha i rperson,  I  have been a l loca ted  to  

read in to  the  record  the  top ic  dea l ing  w i th  the  SARS 
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re la ted  cases.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Th i s ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  captured on  

pages 82 to  106 o f  the  f i led  summar ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Th i s  top ic  i s  dea l t  w i th  under  th ree  

head ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry.   I  was mak ing  a  no te  here .   I t  

s ta r ts  f rom what  page?  

ADV MADLANGA :    Pages 82 to  106,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MADLANGA :    O f  the  summar ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Th i s  top i c  i s  dea l t  under  th ree  

head ings.   The  f i rs t  one be ing  the  in te rcep t ion  o f  

communica t ion  a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  the  D i rec tora te  o f  Spec ia l  

Opera t ions and a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  the  Nat iona l  P rosecut ing  

Author i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    The prosecuto rs  tha t  were  invo lved in  20 

the  SARS re la ted  mat te rs ,  genera l l y,  were  Dr  Pre tor ius ,  

Advocate  Maema and Advocate  Ba loy i .   S tar t ing  w i th  the  

in te rcept ion  o f  communica t ion  case.   The case invo lv ing  

th is  in te rcept ion  a t  the  DSO and the  MPA o f f i ces  was 

w ide ly  pub l i shed  in  the  med ia  under  the  head l ine ,  SARS 
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Rogue un i t .    

 In  th is  summary,  the  prosecu tors  imp l ica ted  

re fer red  to  the  above case a lso  as  the  Rogue un i t  Case  

whereas the  o f f i c ia l  name o f  the  un i t  was a t  the  h igh-r i sk  

Invest iga t ing  Un i t .   In  a nu tshe l l ,  Cha i rperson,  the  Rogue 

un i t  mat te r  i s  about  whethe r  SARS o f f i c ia ls  i ns ta l led ,  

l i s ten ing ,  and moni to r ing  dev i ces a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  the  DSO 

and  the  MPA.   I f  such dev i ces were  ins ta l led ,  i t  i s  

impor tan t  to  be  es tab l i shed who author i sed  such  

ins ta l la t ions,  on  what  au thor i t y  d id  such a  person re ly.    10 

 I f  i t  was SARS management  where  i t  i s  impor tan t  

to  es tab l i sh  whether  SARS has the  s ta tu tory  au tho r i t y  to  

au thor ise  and to  car ry  ou t  such su rve i l lance.   The 

imp l ica ted  prosecuto rs  demonst ra te  tha t  SARS had no 

author i t y  to  au thor ise  and/o r  conduct  such surve i l lance.   

The prosecutors  fu r ther  demonst ra te  by  re fe rence to 

leg is la t i ve  prescr ip ts  and w i tness s ta tements  tha t  SARS is  

no t  s ta tu tor i l y  au thor i sed to  ac t  as  i t  d id .    

 A lso ,  there  is  und isputed ev idence tha t  SARS 

o f f i c ia ls  ins ta l led  such surve i l l ance equ ipment  in  the 20 

o f f i ces  o f  the  DSO and the  MPA.   And las t l y,  SARS,  in  fac t ,  

car r ied  ou t  the  un lawfu l  in te rcep t ion  o f  communica t ion .   

The Rogue un i t  post  i t s  o r ig in  to  the  memorandum 2n d  o f  

February  2007 wh ich  was wr i t ten  by  Mr  P i l lay  in  h is  

capac i ty  as  the  Genera l  Manager  o f  the  Enforcement  and 
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R isk  D iv is ion  o f  SARS.    

 The memorandum was d i rec ted  to  Min i s te r  o f  

F inance a t  the  t ime,  Mr  Trevor  Manue l ,  seek ing  approva l  

fo r  the  fund ing  o f  spec ia l  capab i l i t y  w i th in  the  fo rmer  

Nat iona l  In te l l igence Agency cur ren t ly  known as the  S ta te 

Secur i t y  Agency to  supp ly  SARS and o ther  law enfo rcement  

agenc ies  w i th  the  necessary  in fo rmat ion  to  address e l i c i t  

economy f rom where  SARS was los ing  a  lo t  o f  revenue.    

 From tha t  memorandum tha t  was wr i t ten  by  

Mr  P i l lay,  the  fo l low ing can be l inked,  Cha i rpe rson .   One.   10 

The purpose o f  the  memorandum was to  seek approva l  to  

f ind  a  spec ia l  capab i l i t y  w i th in  –  to  supp ly  SARS and o ther  

law enforcement  agenc ies  w i th  the  necessary  in fo rmat ion  

to  address the  e l i c i t  economy.   Mr  Prav in  Gordan,  SARS 

Commiss ioner  a t  the  t ime,  approved the  recommendat ion  

on  8  February  2007.    

 Mr  Jabu Moleket i  the  fo rmer  Deputy  Min is te r  o f  

F inance approved the  recommendat ion  on  22n d  o f  February  

2007.   Mr  Moleket i ’s  approva l  was accompanied by  a  

handwr i t ten  comment ,  s ta t ing :  20 

“ . . . suppor ted .   However,  th is  i s  a  s t range way o f  

execut ing  what  I  cons ide r  to  be  an  economic  

mandate  o f  NEA.   I t  seems as an  add-on ra ther  

than par t  o f  NEA’s  mandate . . . ”   

Mr  Manue l ,  the  fo rmer  Min i s te r  o f  F inance,  approved  
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recommendat ion  on  22 n d  o f  February  2007.   Last ly,  in  

parag raph 2  o f  the  memorandum,  i t  i s  acknowledged tha t  

SARS d id  no t  have s ta tu tory  au thor i t y  to  conduct  cover t  

surve i l lance on anyone.   Mr  Moleket i  conf i rms th i s  in  h is  

wr i t ten  comment  when suppor t ing  the  recommendat ion .   I t  

i s  wor th  no t ing  tha t  f rom the  read ing  o f  the  memorandum,  

the  in i t ia l  in ten t ion  fo r  es tab l i sh ing  the  un i t  was good and 

per fec t l y  in  o rde r.    

 A lso ,  the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  was  in tended to  be  

es tab l i shed and  conduct  i t s  bus iness was lega l l y  10 

permiss ib le .   The invest iga t ion  conf i rmed tha t  the  Rogue 

un i t  d id  ex i s t .   However,  the  Rogue un i t ’s  es tab l i shment  

was not  in  accordance w i th  the  law.   The Rogue un i t  d id  

no t  conduct  i t s  bus iness in  accordance w i th  the  law.    

 Consequent ly,  cer ta in  SARS o f f i c ia ls  were  

cr im ina l l y  cha rged.   The sa id  o f f i c ia ls  were  charged o f  

cont raven ing  Sect ion  49(1)  o f  the  Regu la t ion  o f  

In te rcept ion  o f  Communica t ions and Prov i s ions o f  

Communica t ion  Re la ted  In fo rmat ion  Act  No 70 o f  2002,  

amongst  o thers .   The abovement ioned charge re la tes  to  20 

the  un lawfu l  f igment  o f  surve i l lance equ ipment  in  the  

o f f i ces  o f  the  fo rmer  DSO and the  MPA and the  in te rcept ion  

o f  communica t ion  in  those o f f i ces .    

 Bas i ca l l y,  what  i s  c r im ina l i sed by  Sect ion  49(1)  o f  

RICA is  the  in ten t iona l  in te rcep t ion  o f  commun ica t ion  
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w i thout  au thor isa t ion  o f  a  des ignated judge in  te rms o f  

Sect ion  16  o f  RICA.   Mr  He lgard  Lombard  made and  

submi t ted  a  s ta tement  in  te rms  o f  Sect ion  204  o f  the 

Cr im ina l  P rocedure  Act  in  re la t ion  to  the  above  case.   In  

h is  s ta tement  Mr  Lombard  conf i rms  the  fo l low ing.    

 One.   He was an employee o f  SARS a t  the  t ime.   

H is  immedia te  superv isor  Mr  Andr ies  Janse van Rensburg  

who in  tu rn  repor ted  to  Mr  P i l lay.   He w i th  the  ass i s tance o f  

Mr  Janse van Rensburg ,  to  some exten t ,  f i t ted  the  

surve i l lance equ ipment  in  the  o f f i ces  o f  the  DSO and MPA.    10 

 On ins t ruc t ion  o f  Messrs  Janse van Rensburg  and  

P i l lay,  he  in te rcepted communica t i on  on  the  DSO o f f i c ia ls  

us ing  the  su rve i l lance equ ipment  tha t  he  and Mr  Janse van  

Rensburg  ins ta l led .   The ins ta l l a t ion  o f  the  surve i l lance 

equ ipment  and the  in te rcept ion  o f  the  communica t ion  were  

conducted w i thou t  au thor isa t ion  o f  a  des ignated j udge in  

te rms o f  Sect ion  16  o f  the  RICA.    

 Las t ly,  a f te r  Mr  Janse van Rensburg  had le f t  the  

employ  o f  SARS,  Mr  Johan van Loggerenberg  took over  

Mr  Janse van Rensburg ’s  pos i t ion  and the  un i t  cont i nued to  20 

conduct  surve i l lance s t i l l  w i thout  Sect ion  16  autho r isa t ion .   

Ev idence g iven by  Mr  Lombard  above is  co r robora ted  by  

Messrs  Jap ie ,  Shaba la ,  E r ic  Ku le lane Kwela ,  D i l lo  

Nyaphud i ,  Dan ie  le  Roux and Franco is  van N iekerk ,  as  we l l  

as  Ms Nora  P i ts i .    
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 A l l  the  above w i tnesses were  SARS employees  

a t tached to  the  rogue un i t  a t  the  t imes re levant  to  the 

case.   Mr  Johan Dan ie l  de  Waal  a lso  cor robora tes  the  

ev idence g iven by  Mr  Lombard .   Cha i rperson,  i f  regard  is  

had to  the  content  o f  the  memorandum of  2  February  2007  

prepared by  Mr  P i l lay,  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  Mr  P i l lay  and  

everyone who suppor ted  the  contents  o f  the  memorandum 

knew tha t  SARS d id  no t  have the  s ta tu tory  au thor i t y  to  

car ry  ou t  su rve i l lance.    

 In  add i t ion  to  Mr  Lombard ’s  conf i rmat ion  o f  10 

ins ta l la t ion  o f  the  surve i l lance equ ipment  a t  the  DSO and 

MPA o f f i ces  and the  in te rcept ion  o f  communica t ion ,  Co lone l  

I sak  Johannes F i scher  conf i rmed the  capab i l i t y  o f  the 

surve i l lance equ ipment  as  i nd i ca ted  by  Mr  Lombard .   

Cop ies  o f  the  s ta tements  o f  the  ind iv idua ls  re fe r red  to  

above were  in  the  docket  and are  a t tached as  annexures to  

the  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tements  o f  the  imp l ica ted  p rosecutors  f i led  

w i th  the  Commiss ion .    

 In  v iew o f  the  ev idence se t  ou t  above tha t  was  

before  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors ,  they were  jus t i f ied  to  20 

ins t i tu ted  cr im ina l  p roceed ings in  th is  regard .   They 

submi t ,  Cha i rperson.   Now,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  come to  the  

second top i c  under  the  SARS re la ted  mat te rs .   Th is  one  

re la tes  to  the  ear ly  re t i rement  o f  and pens ion  pay-out  to  Mr  

P i l lay.   The mat te r  re la t ing  to  the  re t i rement  o f  Mr  P i l lay 
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su f f i ced  du r ing  the  invest iga t ion  o f  the  rogue un i t  case  

when a  cor respondence re la t ing  to  i t  was d iscovered .    

 The invest iga t ion  re fer red  to  here  was gu ided by  

the  Pr io r i t y  Cr imes Mi t iga t ion  Un i t  as  i t  had been re fer red  

to  i t  by  the  NDP in  te rms o f  the  proc lamat ion .   On perusa l  

o f  the  cor respondence,  i t  appeared tha t  SARS might  have 

incu r red  unauthor ised,  i r regu la r,  and f ru i t less  and waste fu l  

expend i tu re  in  respect  o f  the  ear l y  re t i rement  o f  Mr  P i l lay.   

I t  appeared ve ry  improper  tha t  SARS cou ld  pay a  

re t i rement  pena l ty  fo r  an  employee,  par t i cu la r l y  when an  10 

employee takes an  ear ly  re t i remen t  due to  pure ly  persona l  

reasons.    

 S ince the  PCLU must  gu ide  and manage the  

invest iga t ions o f  mat te rs  re fe r red  to  i t  and mat te rs  

inc identa l  there to ,  PCLU was ob l iged to  request  the  

invest iga to rs  to  i nvest iga te  Mr  P i l lay ’s  pens ion  pay-out  and 

gu ide  the  invest iga t ion  in  tha t  regard .   The inves t iga t ion  

revea led  tha t  the  manner  in  wh ich  Mr  P i l lay  granted ear l ie r  

re t i rement  was in  cont ravent ion  o f  the  law re la t ing  to  

pens ions.    20 

 I t  was meant  to  ass is t  Mr  P i l lay  to  sor t  ou t  h is  

persona l  p rob lems re la t ing  to  the  schoo l ing  o f  h is  ch i ld ren .   

The approva l  o f  Mr  P i l lay ’s  ear l y  re t i rement  by  the  Min i s te r  

o f  F inance was  coup led  w i th  the  recommendat ion  tha t  

a lmost  immedia te ly  a f te r  re t i remen t  Mr  P i l lay  wou ld  be  re -
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appo in ted  by  SARS to  occupy  the  same pos i t ion  he  

occup ied  before  tak ing  re t i rement .    

 That  i s  the  pos i t ion  o f  the  Deputy  Commiss ioner  

even though the  re -appo in tment  was on cont rac t  bas i s .   

The re -appo in tment  o f  Mr  P i l lay  was done w i thout  fo l low ing  

the  cor rec t  p rocedure .   For  ins tance,  the  pos i t ion  was not  

adver t i sed and there fore  no  in te rv iews were  conducted.   

Based on the  above,  Messrs  Magashu la ,  P i l lay  and  

Gordhan were  cr im ina l l y  cha rged.    

 I t  i s  wor th  no t ing  the  fo l low ing in  re la t ion  to  the  10 

cr im ina l  p roceed ings tha t  were  ins t i tu ted  aga ins t  the  th ree  

above.   The prosecut ion  team d id  no t  have Mr  Symington ’s  

s ta tement  in  the  docket  when the  dec is ion  to  p rosecute  

was taken.   Mr  Symington was  a t  the  re levan t  t ime 

employed by  SARS a t  i t s  Lega l  and  Po l icy  Depar tment .    

 He prepared an op in ion  upon wh ich  i t  was a l leged  

tha t  the  dec is ion  to  approve Mr  P i l lay ’s  ea r ly  re t i rement  

was b iased.   The p rosecut ion  became aware  o f  the  

ex i s tence o f  Mr  Symington ’s  op in ion  on  14 October  2016  

when Messrs  Magashu la  and P i l lay  made the  20 

rep resenta t ions in  te rms o f  Sect ion  179(5)  o f  the 

Const i tu t ion  fo r  the  w i thdrawal  o f  charges aga ins t  them.    

 The prosecutors  who were  invo lved in  charg ing  the  

th ree  above were  accused o f  ins t i tu t ing  mal ic ious 

prosecut ion  aga ins t  them.   Th is  a l legat ion  is  leve l led  
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aga ins t  the  sa id  prosecutors  coup led  w i th  the  a l legat ion  

tha t  they together  w i th  o thers  re fer red  to  in  Genera l  

Booysen ’s  and Mr  McBr ide ’s  a f f idav i t s  an  ab led  s ta te  

capture  by  pe rsecut ing  cor rup t ion  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [01 :46 :43]  

and by  re fus ing  to  p rosecute  po l i t i ca l l y  connected  

ind iv idua ls .    

 I t  i s  no t  the  ind iv idua ls  who were  charged tha t  

accuse the  p rosecutors  o f  ma l i c ious prosecut ion  bu t  i s  

Genera l  Booysen  and Mr  McBr ide .   Be tha t  as  i t  may.   

Cons ider ing  the  generous natu re  o f  the  proceed ings o f  the 10 

Commiss ion ,  the  prosecutors  must  s t i l l  respond  to  the  

unsubstant ia ted  and base less  a l legat ions tha t  

Genera l  Booysen and Mr  McBr ide  made aga ins t  them.    

 The charges aga ins t  Messrs  Magashu la ,  P i l lay  and  

Gordhan were  the  fo l low ing:  

“1 .  I t  was f raud in  tha t  a  fa lse  pre tence was 

g iven to  SARS and Nat iona l  Treasury  to  i t s  

p re jud ice  tha t  SARS was l iab le  to  pay in  excess  

o f  a  m i l l ion  rands to  the  GEPF on beha l f  o f  Mr  

P i l lay  wh ich  was a  pena l ty  fo r  tak ing  ea r ly  20 

re t i rement  fo r  persona l  reasons.    

2 .   Cont ravent ion  o f  the  Pub l ic  F inance 

Management  Act  by  caus ing  SARS to  incur  o r  

fa i l ing  to  p reven t  unautho r ised,  i r regu la r,  and  

f ru i t less  and waste fu l  expend i tu re .    
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3 .   A fu r the r  f raud in  tha t  a  fa lse  pre tence was  

g iven out  to  the  Human Resources o f  SARS to  

i t s  p re jud ice  to  en ter  in to  an  employment  

cont rac t  w i th  Mr  P i l lay  fo r  a  renumerat ion  

package fo r  a  per iod  o f  f i ve  years  i ns tead o f  

th ree  years  wh ich  was in  the  approved  

memorandum wh ich  was approved by  Min is te r  

Gordhan.  

4 .   A fu r the r  f raud in  tha t  a  fa lse  pre tence was  

g iven to  Human Resources o f  SARS to  i t s  10 

pre jud ice  to  en te r  in to  an  employment  cont rac t  

w i th  Mr  P i l lay  fo r  a  per iod  o f  four  yea rs  when 

there  was no approved in te rna l  memorandum or  

a  le t te r  au tho r is ing  i t .  

The prosecutors  who were  invo lved in  the  prosecut ion  o f  

th is  case be ing  Dr  Pre to r ius  and Advocate  Maema 

demonst ra te  in  t he i r  respect ive  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tements  f i led  

w i th  the  Commiss ion  tha t  based on the  ob jec t i ve  ev idence  

tha t  was befo re  them they were  jus t i f ied  in  recommending  

to  the  NDPP tha t  the  ind i v idua ls  re fe r red  to  above must  be  20 

prosecuted.    

 They demonst ra te  tha t  there  was a  reasonab le  

prospect  o f  successfu l  p rosecut ion  in  the  mat te r.   In  the 

parag raphs tha t  fo l low,  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors  

demonst ra te  tha t  there  was a  ra t iona l  bas is  to  b r ing  
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charges aga ins t  the  th ree  ind i v idua ls .   The fo l low ing  

ev idence was in  the  docket  when the  dec is ion  to  p rosecute  

was taken.    

 On 12 August  2010,  the  fo rmer  Commiss ioner  o f  

SARS,  Mr  Magashu la ,  requested  the  fo rmer  Min is te r  o f  

F inance,  Mr  Gordhan,  to  approve the  ear l y  re t i rement  o f  

Mr  P i l lay  f rom SARS wi th  fu l l  re t i rement  benef i t s  w i th  

e f fec t  f rom 1  Sep tember  2010 and tha t  SARS must  pay the  

ear l y  re t i rement  pena l ty  tha t  is  payab le  to  GEPF as 

contempla ted  i n  Ru le  14 .3 .3(b )  o f  the  GEPF Pens ion  Law 10 

read w i th  Sect ion  19  o f  the  SARS Act  and Sect ion  16 .2A o f  

the  Pub l ic  Serv i ce  Act .    

 Approva l  was a lso  sought  fo r  Mr  P i l lay  to  be  re -

appo in ted  a lmost  immedia te ly  a f te r  re t i rement  in  the  same 

pos i t ion  as  the  Deputy  Commiss ioner  on  cont rac t  fo r  th ree  

years .   E f fec t i ve ly,  Mr  P i l lay  wou ld  be  enab led  to  pay fo r  

h is  ch i ld ren ’s  educat ion  and cont inue h is  employment  a t  

SARS for  anothe r  th ree  years  wh i ls t  SARS wou ld  su f fe r  

f inanc ia l  loss  in  excess o f  a  m i l l ion  rands.    

 P rov i s ion  was made in  the  memorandum for  the  20 

fo rmer  Deputy  Min is te r,  Min is te r  Nh lanh la  Nene to  

recommend the  proposa l  bu t  the  fo rmer  Min is te r,  

Mr  Gordhan,  approved the  ea r ly  re t i rement  w i thout  

Mr  Nene ’s  s ignature .   Mr  Nene exp la ined tha t  he  had no  

reco l lec t ion  o f  the  memorandum be ing  presented to  h im fo r  
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comment .    

 A f te r  Mr  P i l lay  went  on  ear ly  re t i rement ,  

Mr  Magashu la  en tered in to  an  employment  agreement  w i th  

Mr  P i l lay  in  the  same capac i ty  fo r  a  per iod  o f  f i ve  years  

commencing  on 1  January  2011 knowing tha t  the  approva l  

g ran ted was fo r  a  per iod  o f  th ree  years  on ly.    

 And las t l y,  jus t  be fore  Mr  Gordhan was appo in ted  

as  Min i s te r  o f  Corpora t ive  Governance and Trad i t iona l  

A f fa i rs  in  May 2014,  he  ex tended Mr  P i l lay ’s  con t rac t  fo r  

another  fou r  years  when there  was no in te rna l  10 

memorandum author i s ing  such ex tens ion  when Mr  P i l lay ’s  

employment  cont rac t  was to  te rm inate  in  2016.   The 

cont rac t  s t i l l  had  a  year  –  two years ,  in  fac t ,  to  run  be fore  

i t  exp i red .    

 A lso ,  a t  the  d isposa l  o f  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors  

there  were  two undated memoranda wh ich  were  wr i t ten  by  

Mr  P i l lay.   The one was addressed to  Mr  Magashu la  and  

the  o ther  to  Mr  Gordhan.   In  the  one addressed to  Mr  

Magashu la ;  he  ment ions the  reason fo r  h is  ear l y  re t i rement  

as :    20 

“ I  was expected to  per fo rm a t  a  very  h igh  leve l  

accompan ied by  accountab i l i t i es  tha t  go  w i th  the  

per fo rmance o f  such a  h igh- leve l  job .    

Th is  exer ted  i t s  to l l  f rom me in  the  sense tha t  my 

hea l th  cond i t ion  is  s lowly  de ter io ra t ing .    
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Add ing  to  th is ,  my fami ly  respons ib i l i t i es  fo r  a  

long t ime su f fe red  on account  o f  the  ded ica t ion  

requ i red  by  my job .   I  have dec ided to  take  ear ly  

re t i rement . . . ”  

In  the  one addressed to  Mr  Gordhan;  he  s ta tes :  

“ I  have reached a  s tage in  my l i fe  where  i t  has  

become a  rea l i t y  tha t  I  had to  make some very  

impor tan t  dec is ions about  the  educat ion  o f  my 

ch i ld ren .  

The dec is ion  I  have taken w i l l  requ i re  a  10 

cons iderab le  cap i ta l  investment ,  money tha t  can  

be ra ised by  means o f  a  bank loan but  wh ich  

wou ld  be  proh ib i t i ve ly  expens ive  in  v iew o f  the  

cur ren t  f inanc ia l  c i rcumstances where  very  h igh  

ra tes  o f  in te res ts  a re  the  order  o f  the  day and  

ind ica t ions tha t  a re  tha t  th is  s i tua t ion  w i l l  p reva i l  

fo r  the  fo reseeab le  fu tu re .  

In  v iew o f  th is  I  have dec ided to  in fo rm you tha t  I  

in tend to  re t i re  in  2009 when I  reach the  age o f  

56-years .  20 

As I  have a l ready reached the  ea r l ies t  op t iona l  

re t i rement  age o f  55-years  in  te rms o f  SARS 

Ret i rement  Prov i s ions,  the  re t i rement  benef i t s  

w i l l  p rov ide  me w i th  a  lumpsum benef i t  wh ich  w i l l  

f inanc ia l l y  suppor t  the  dec i s ion  I  have made in  
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te rms o f  the  educat ion  o f  my ch i l d ren  as  we l l  as  

a  month l y  pens ion .  

Whi l s t  th is  may  not  be  idea l  in  te rms o f  the  

benef i t s  when f ina l l y  when f ina l l y  re t i r ing ,  I  am 

o f  the  op in ion  tha t  th is  i s  the  best  op t ion  

ava i lab le  to  me as fa r  as  my ch i ld ren ’s  educat ion  

is  concerned.  

Th is  b r ings me to  the  second issue a t  s take,  

namely,  how I  v iew my re t i rement  as  ra i sed 

above.  10 

C lear ly,  I  am do ing  th is  on  account  o f  a  mat te r  

tha t  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  my work  a t  SARS.  

I  s t i l l  fee l  tha t  I  am s t i l l  capab le  o f  do ing  my 

work .  

I  s t i l l  have the  en thus iasm and w i l l  to  do  i t  and I  

am o f  the  op in ion  tha t  th rough my work  I  can s t i l l  

con t r ibu te  to  the  es tab l i shment  o f  an  even bet te r  

South  A f r i ca  fo r  a l l  i t s  c i t i zens. . . ”  

The imp l ica ted  p rosecutors  he ld  a  v iew tha t  the  separa te  

reasons fo r  ear ly  re t i rement  a re  qu i te  d i f fe ren t  and 20 

cont rad i c t  each o the r.   Sect ion  16(6 )  paragraph A o f  the  

PSA requ i res  tha t  the  Execut ive  Author i t y  may autho r ise  an  

employee to  take  ear ly  re t i rement  i f  there  are  su f f i c ien t  

reasons to  take  such ear l y  re t i rement .    

 In  the i r  v iew,  the  reasons advanced fo r  such ea r ly  
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re t i rement  cont rad ic t  each o the r  and a re  pu re l y  persona l  

and have noth ing  to  do  w i th  h i s  ob l iga t ions towards  SARS.   

The o f f i c ia ls  a t  Human Resources warned Mr  Magashu la  

tha t  imp lementa t i on  o f  the  dec is ion  wou ld  amount  to  SARS 

pay ing  fo r  the  educat ion  o f  Mr  P i l lay ’s  ch i ld ren  but  they 

were  s imp ly  ignored.    

 In  add i t ion  to  the  th ree  memoranda re fe r red  to  

above,  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors  had the  fo l low ing  

documents  in  the i r  possess ion  wh ich  the  cons ide red when 

mak ing  the  dec is ion  to  b r ing  the  charges in  i ssue .   The 10 

f i rs t  one i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  N ico  Johan Coetzee.   A t  the  

re levant  t ime Mr  Coetzee was an  employee o f  SARS.   In  

h is  a f f idav i t  he  says:  

“ In  2008,  I  was ins t ruc ted  to  p repare  a  

m in is te r i a l  memorandum to  be  s igned by  Mr  

Gordhan who was Commiss ioner  o f  SARS a t  the 

t ime to  recommend to  the  then Min is te r  o f  

F inance,  Trevor  Manue l ,  tha t  he  approved  

P i l lay ’s  ear ly  re t i rement .  

I  awa i ted  the  approva l  by  the  Min is te r  o f  the  20 

request  by  Mr  P i l lay.  

In  October  2009 wh i le  wa i t ing  fo r  the  approva l  o f  

the  memorandum,  I  rece ived  a  rev ised  

memorandum f rom the  Off i ce  o f  the  

Commiss ioner,  Mr  Oupa Magashu la .  
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The memorandum conta ined d i f fe ren t  reasons 

f rom my or ig ina l  memorandum as to  why the  

Min is te r  shou ld  approve Mr  Ivan  P i l lay ’s  ea r ly  

re t i rement .  

The reasons on the  rev ised memorandum were  

tha t  Mr  P i l lay  w ished to  go  on  ear l y  re t i rement  in  

o rder  to  enab le  h im to  prov ide  fo r  h is  ch i ld ren ’s  

educat ion  and not  as  I  have prev ious ly  s ta ted  

tha t  he  w ished to  pursue o ther  in te res t s .  

I  ra ised concerns to  the  Commiss ioner  th rough 10 

the  emai ls  da ted  the  8 t h  and the  

9 t h  o f  October  2009 respect ive l y  tha t  i f  the 

Min is te r  shou ld  approve Mr  P i l lay ’s  app l i ca t ion  

on  the  grounds o f  persona l  in te res t  i t  may crea te  

a  pres ident  in  terms o f  wh ich  o ther  employees 

might  come fo rward  w i th  s im i la r  requests  o f  ear ly  

re t i rement . . . ”  

In  the  emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Mad langa,  we  are  a t  twe lve  o ’ c lock .   I  

p ropose to  add ten  m inutes  to  cover  fo r  the  two o r  th ree  20 

quest ions tha t  I  asked.   I s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you? 

ADV MADLANGA :    Cha i rperson,  I  –  fo r  me to  f in ish ,  I  may  

say I  s t i l l  need about  ten  m inutes .   And my learned  leader,  

Math ibed i  SC,  i s  a lso  in tend ing  to  s t i l l  come.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Wel l ,  f rom ten  to  twe lve ,  tha t  i s  
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two hours ,  bu t  you know I  promised – because Mr  

Math ibed i  d id  no t  s ta r t  exact ly  a t  ten .   I  wou ld  add and  

a lso  fo r  a  few quest ions.   So,  I  p ropose to  add ten  m inutes ,  

bu t  le t  me do th is .   Le t  me add  15-minutes .   We go to  

quar te r  past .   How your  team uses i t ,  le t  me leave  tha t  to  

you.   I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV MADLANGA :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV MADLANGA :    Because  I  know,  Cha i rpe rson,  

Math ibed i  SC s t i l l  needs to  address you,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MADLANGA :    Maybe I  shou ld  a t  th is  s tage s top  and 

g ive  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MADLANGA :    . . . you  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe have –  maybe take f i ve  m inutes  

to  wrap up.   Then I  w i l l  see  how I  accommodate  h im wi th in  

–  I  w i l l  no t  g ive  h im a  lo t  more  bu t  take  f i ve  m inutes  to  

wrap up your  sect ion .    

ADV MADLANGA :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   In  a  nu tshe l l ,  20 

Cha i rperson,  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors  demonst ra te  tha t  

in  the  docket  tha t  was before  them a t  the  t ime when they  

dec ided to  ins t i tu te  the  c r im ina l  p roceed ings aga ins t  

Mr  P i l lay,  Mr  Magashu la  and  Mr  Gordhan  ac tua l l y  

suppor ted  the  dec i s ion  i n  tha t  there  were  reasonab le  
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p rospects  o f  a  successfu l  p rosecut ion  cons ider ing  the  

ev idence tha t  was befo re  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

ADV MADLANGA :    I f  I  may qu ick ly  move on to  the  las t  

top ic  under  these  SARS re la ted  mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    I t  re la tes  to  the  re fusa l  to  p rosecute  

Br igad ier  Xaba and o thers  who  were  invest iga t ing  the  

rogue un i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

ADV MADLANGA :    The imp l ica ted  prosecutors  in  th is  case  

–  the  imp l ica ted  prosecutors  in  re la t ion  to  the  above mat te r  

were  Dr  Pre tor ius  and Advocate  Ba loy i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV MADLANGA :    Th is  mat te r  emanates  s t i l l  f rom the  

invest iga t ion  tha t  was conducted in  re la t ion  to  the  rogue 

un i t .   A f te r  the  documenta t ion  in  wh ich  i t  was d iscovered 

tha t  there  was th is  ear l y  re t i rement  pay-out  to  Mr  P i l lay,  

when Mr  Magashu la ,  Mr  P i l lay  and Mr  Gordhan were  

charged,  la te r  Mr  Magashu la  and Mr  P i l lay  made 20 

rep resenta t ions to  the  NDPP in  terms o f  Sect ion  179(5)  o f  

the  Const i tu t ion ,  and in  the  representa t ions,  they made 

they made ment ion  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the i r  dec i s ion  to  

approve the  ear ly  re t i rement  was based on an op in ion  tha t  

was g iven by  Mr  Symington who was in  the  Lega l  
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Depar tment  o f  SARS.    

 Then the  PCLU ins t ruc ted  the  invest iga t ing  team to  

ge t  a  s ta tement  f rom Mr  Symington and in  gu id ing  tha t  

invest iga t ion  Dr  Pre tor ius  wro te  a  memorandum which  he  

sent  to  the  inves t iga t ing  team lead by  Br igad ie r  Xaba and  

Br igad ier  Xaba fo r  what  tha t  memorandum to  the  a t to rney 

cont rac ted  to  SARS who in  tu rn  fo rwarded i t  to  Mr  Moyane 

who was the  Commiss ioner  a t  the  t ime.     

 Mr  Moyane fo rwarded the  memorandum to  

Mr  Symington Sen ior  to  d iscuss  i t  w i th  Mr  Symington.   10 

When the  invest iga t ing  o f f i ce rs  v i s i ted  SARS to  take  the  

s ta tement  f rom Mr  Symington,  they rea l i sed tha t  he  knew 

the  issues tha t  were  ra i sed in  the  PCLU memorandum and 

they ind i ca ted  to  the  Commiss ioner  tha t  they were  no t  

happy tha t  he  was hav ing  tha t  document  w i th  h im because 

they were  fear ing  tha t  i t  m igh t  be  leaked to  the  med ia .    

 Then the  Commiss ioner  ins t ruc ted  h is  bodyguard  

to  accompany the  invest iga t ing  team to  go  and re t r ieve  

tha t  document  f rom Mr Symington  and on the i r  a r r i va l ,  Mr  

Symington re fused to  g ive  i t  to  them and there  was some 20 

s tandoff  bu t  u l t imate ly,  they took –  managed to  ge t  the  

memorandum f rom h im.    

 And he la te r  la id  c r im ina l  charges aga ins t  the  

DPCI  invest iga t i ng  team members  and Mr  TT,  the  

Commiss ioner ’s  bodyguard .   When tha t  docket  u l t imate ly  
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came to  Advocate  Ba loy i ,  he  dec l ined to  p rosecute  and tha t  

the  reason,  amongst  o thers ,  was  tha t  Mr  Symington made  

two s ta tements  and the re  were  cont rad ic t ions  in  those  

s ta tements  wh ich  Advocate  Ba loy i  was o f  the  v iew tha t  

they made the  –  they impac ted negat ive l y  on  the  

successfu l  p rosecut ion  o f  the  case.   Hence,  he  dec l ined to  

p rosecute .    

 That  i s  the  reason,  amongst  o thers ,  tha t  he  is  

labe l led  by  Mr  McBr ide  tha t  he  is  a  member  o f  the  core  

group tha t  was enab l ing  the  captu re  o f  the  s ta te .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    H is  dec i s ion ,  Cha i rperson,  i s  ac tua l l y  

in  a  way suppor ted  by  the  dec i s ion  o f  Fabr ic ius  J  in  –  when  

he was d ismiss ing  the  app l i ca t i on  tha t  was made by  

Mr  Symington based on the  same fac ts .   He was o f  the  

v iew tha t  there  was no th rea t  a t  a l l  tha t  was exer ted  

aga ins t  Mr  Symington on the  day.   He even says tha t  –  in  

fac t ,  there  is  a  passage f rom the  judgment  o f  Fabr ic ius  J .   

He even says tha t  the  s tandof f  cou ld  have been reso lved  

by  a  handshake and over  a  g lass  o f  beer.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV MADLANGA :    That  Advocate  Ba loy i  v iews as  

suppor t ing  h i s  pos i t ion  to  dec l ine  to  p rosecute .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MADLANGA :    Mr  Symington and h i s  lega l  
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rep resenta t i ves  a lso  requested  a  cer t i f i ca te  o f  non-

prosecut ion  wh ich  was g iven a lmost  four  years  ago .   Up to  

da te  no  pr i va te  prosecut ion  has been ins t i tu ted  and tha t  

a lso  –  Advocate  Ba loy i  submi ts  tha t  i t  i s  an  ind ica t ion  tha t  

Mr  Symington and h is  lega l  team a lso  rea l ised la te r  tha t  

there  is  no  success –  there  are  no  prospects  o f  a  

successfu l  p rosecut ion .    

 Wi th  tha t ,  Cha i rperson,  I  shou ld  end to  say tha t  

Advocate  Ba loy i  in  th is  regards submi ts  tha t  what  i s  sa id  

by  Mr  McBr ide  aga ins t  h im cannot  jus t i f y  the  labe l  bu t  he  is  10 

enab l ing  the  capture  o f  the  s ta te .   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Thank you,  Mr  Mad langa.   

Mr  Math ibed i .    

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  g ive  you ten  m inutes .   I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .    

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may cont inue.   H ’m.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    I  am dea l ing  w i th  Cato  Manor.   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    28  peop le  d ied  a t  the  hands o f  the  

po l i ce  o f f i cers  o f  wh ich  Genera l  Ma jor  Booysen was  

lead ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    Now i t  i s  very  impor tan t  to  ind ica te  

tha t  what  i s  su rpr is ing  is  tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  re l iance  

is  p laced on se l f -de fence by  the  members ,  none  o f  the  

members  susta ined in ju r ies .   Even not  a  s ing le  po l i ce  

veh ic le  was damaged dur ing  the  inc ident .   And o f  c r i t i ca l  

impor tance is  the  ev idence tha t  in  some o f  the  scenes  

f i rearms were  p lan ted  by  the  Cato  Manor  Un i t  and ba l l i s t i c  

ev idence revea led  tha t  some o f  those ev idence –  f i rea rms 

tha t  were  re t r ieved by  members  o f  the  Cato  Manor  cou ld  

no t  –  were  no t  funct iona l .   Even,  you know,  a  bu l l e t  cou ld  10 

not  be  f i red  f rom tha t  –  f rom those  f i rearms.   And the  most  

ou ts tand ing  inc ident ,  Cha i rperson,  re la tes  to  a  16-year -o ld  

boy,  Kwas i (? )  Nd lovu(? )  [00 :08 :59]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    And I  have been in  contac t  w i th  the  

parents .   The fa ther  says jus t i ce  has fa i led  h im.   We have 

a  16 -year -o ld  son who was shot  in  the  –  who was shot  

dead,   You know,  more  than one bu l le t  h i t  the  young boy  

wh i ls t  in  the  ren ted  house dur ing  the  even ing  wh i ls t  he  was  

as leep.   And the  a l legat ion  is  tha t  they were  ac t ing  in  se l f -20 

de fence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    Now i f  we have to  look  a t  the  

ev idence o f  a  member  o f  the  po l i ce ,  Mangena,  Br igad ie r  

Mangena who d i spe ls  the  no t ion  tha t  Kwas i  Nd lovu was 
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pos ing  any th rea t  o r  a  danger  to  the  po l i ce .   The ev idence  

revea ls  tha t  a t  the  t ime he was shot ,  he  was lay ing  on  a  

couch.    

 And the  fa ther  says,  a t  a  la te r  s tage:   “ I  was asked  

a  quest ion  as  to  who is  the  person tha t  was shot . ”   And he 

sa id :   “ I t  i s  my son. ”   And the  opera t ion  ceased.   And what  

i s  d is tu rb ing  is  tha t  we have here  members  o f  the  po l i ce  

who can u t i l i se  the  serv i ces  o f  the  po l i ce  in te l l igence to  

de termine whethe r  the  peop le  who escaped f rom p r i son are  

the  peop le  who were  s tay ing  in  tha t  house wh ich  tu rned out  10 

tha t  they are  no t .    

 And we a lso  have  an inc ident  o f  a  person who was  

shot  dead in  a  whee ly-b in .   You know,  the  photos  revea l  

tha t  the  shoot ing  happened f rom the  top  as  the  lead,  you  

know,  has go t  some hose(?) .   Cha i rperson,  we respect fu l l y  

submi t  tha t  Advocate  Maema and Mathen jwa demonst ra ted  

in  the i r  a f f idav i t s  the  ev idence tha t  was ava i lab le  a t  the i r  

d isposa l  tha t  led  to  the ,  you know,  the  l ay ing  o f  the  

in i t ia t ion  o f  charges aga ins t  Booysen and o ther  members .    

 And we must  a lso  bear  in  m ind tha t  Booysen is  one  20 

o f  the  imp l ica ted  persons and there  are  a l l  reasons  why he  

is  condemning Mathen jwa and Maema.   And i t  i s  no t  –  even  

h is  ev idence tha t  he  went  th rough those dockets  t o  

es tab l i sh  what  the  k ind  and nature  o f  ev idence  was in  

those dockets .    
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 And o f  c r i t i ca l  impor tance is  tha t  i t  i s  no t  even h is  

ev idence tha t  an  invest iga t ion ,  an  in te rna l  invest iga t ion  

was made by  h im to  de termine what  i s  i t  tha t  happened  

dur ing  those shoot ing  inc idents .   Cha i rpe rson,  we 

respect fu l l y  subm i t  tha t  the  charg ing  was jus t i f ied .   And the  

o ther  aspect  tha t  re la tes  to  the  De Kock Repor t .   We have 

se t  ou t  in  what  respect  th is  ev idence –  th is  repor t  i s  f lawed 

wh ich  record  was used to  w i thdraw the  charges aga ins t  

Booysen and h i s  co l leagues.    

 Cha i rperson,  the  o the r  th ing  re la tes  to  the  10 

invo l vement  o f  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  in  the  invest iga t ion  tha t  

t ransp i red  a t  the  house or  home o f  Mr  Phah lane.   Whi ls t  i t  

i s  acceptab le  tha t  in  cer ta in  c i r cumstances w i tnesses or  

compla in t s  a re  en t i t led  and a re  a l l owed to  go  to  a  house o f  

a  suspect  to  go  and do whatever,  you know,  po in t ing  ou t  

shou ld  be  made ,  bu t  in  th is  regard ,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  

respect  tha t  tha t  went  beyond what  was expected o f  a  

w i tness.    

 And a lso ,  there  i s  a  repor t  wh ich  ind ica tes  as  to  

why i t  was unat ta inab le  or  undes i rab le  fo r  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  20 

to  have been invo lved in  tha t  invest iga t ion .   And  on h is  

own vers ion ,  McBr ide  says:   “ I  am aware  o f  the  k ind  o f  

person Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  is . ”   But  he  d id  no t  se t  boundar ies  

fo r  h im and sa id :   “You can on ly  go  up  to  th is  ex ten t . ”   

Which  tha t  d id  no t  happen.    



23 JULY 2021 – DAY 423 
 

Page 84 of 106 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    And a lso ,  ev idence is  tha t  

Cha i rperson,  wh ich  demonst ra tes  what  k ind  o f  person  

O’Su l l i van  is .   The p le thora  o f  emai ls  tha t  were  sent  to  

Pre tor ius  tha t  was sent  to  Phah lane,  tha t  was sent  to  

Mashuga.   We respect fu l l y  submi t ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  there  

was su f f i c ien t ,  you know,  ev idence tha t  necess i t a ted  the  

charg ing  o f  O ’Su l l i van  and members  o f  the  IP ID.    

 S im i la r ly,  a lso  the  charg ing  o f  Advocate  

Breytenbach.   And o f  c r i t i ca l  impor tance is  tha t ,  as  mat te r  10 

s tand now,  i t  i s  no t  –  there  is  no  s ta tement  emanat ing  f rom 

Breytenbach who  makes a l legat ions tha t ,  you know,  my 

charg ing  was because o f  –  you know,  was po l i t i ca l l y  

mot iva ted ,  Cha i rperson.    

 Cha i rperson,  we respect fu l l y  submi t  tha t  the  on ly  

c r ime or  scene tha t  the  imp l ica ted  o f f i c ia l  commi t ted  is  

because they d id  the i r  s ta tu tory  du t ies and ob l iga t ion  as  

was expected o f  them wi thou t  any fea r,  favour,  o r  

p re jud ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV MATHIBEDI  SC :    Whichever  dec is ion ,  they took i t ,  

whethe r  to  p rosecute  or  to  dec l ine  to  p rosecute  was based  

–  was lega l l y  jus t i f ied ,  Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson,  las t l y.   

We wou ld  l i ke  on  beha l f  o f  the  imp l ica ted  MPA o f f i c ia ls ,  we 

wou ld  l i ke  to  take  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  thank the  Cha i rperson  
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fo r  hav ing  g iven  us  a  p la t fo rm in  th is  Commiss ion  to  te l l  

th is  Commiss ion  and the  wor ld  tha t  the  a l legat ions leve l led  

aga ins t  the  imp l ica ted  o f f i c ia l s  a re  mal ic ious.    

 They are  un founded.   There  is  no  mer i t  in  tha t .   

They are  based on con jec tu re .   Such was mere l y  meant  to ,  

you know,  take  away or  sh i f t  away the  un lawfu l  conduct  

wh ich  they commi t ted ,  the  very  same peop le  tha t  po in ts  a  

f inger  a t  the  imp l ica ted  o f f i c ia l s .   They are  the  ones who,  

ac tua l l y,  a re  c r im ina ls .    

 They are  no t ,  you know,  c r ime busters  as  they  10 

seek,  you know,  the  communi ty  o r  the  pub l i c  shou ld  

be l ieve ,  Cha i rperson.   We thank the  Cha i rperson fo r  tha t  

oppor tun i ty  fo r  hav ing  g iven them the  oppor tun i ty.   A t  leas t ,  

fo r  them to  have a  say.   Thanks,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Thank you,  Mr  Math ibed i .   Thank 

you ve ry  much.   So,  we w i l l  end i t  here .    

ADV HULLEY SC :    Cha i r,  i f  I  can  jus t  ment ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have a l ready ind ica ted  p rev ious ly  what  

i s  go ing  to  happen.   Thank you ve ry  much.   Thank you,  Mr  20 

Hu l ley,  to  you as  we l l .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   I f  I  m ight  jus t  

ment ion  i f  you  do  not  m ind Mr  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Sesoko and  
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Mr  Khuba ’s  representa t i ve ,  Mr  Baard  Ford  had  app l ied  

be fore  you prev ious l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    . . . fo r  leave to  pu t  in  a  summary  o f  the i r  

own and to  rece ive  a  summary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And I  have been contac ted  by  Mr  Ford  

dur ing  the  ad jou rnment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    He has remined me and he has asked  10 

me to  remind you tha t  dur ing  the  course  o f  d ismiss ing  h is  

app l i ca t ion ,  you had ind i ca ted  tha t  they –  tha t  you wou ld  

recons ider  the i r  pos i t ion  i f  the  need a r ises .   Now,  Mr  Ford ,  

I  unders tand,  i s  on  the  l ink  and he might  want  to  address 

you on tha t .   I  jus t  d raw tha t  to  your  a t ten t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   I  w i l l  no t  a l low anybody e lse  

to  address me,  bu t  the  summar ies  a re  pub l i c  documents  

now and they may have them,  bu t  th is  i s  where  we w i l l  end 

th is  par t  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  hear ing .   I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

about  15-minutes  and then I  w i l l  resume to  enab le  

somebody e l se  to  p rov ide  summar ies ,  read summar ies  in  

regard  to  another  imp l ica ted  pe rson.   So,  the  pos i t ion  w i th  

regard  to  th is  i s .   Th is  i s  the  end  fo r  now and any  o f  the 
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w i tnesses who  had g iven ev idence may have the i r  

summar ies ,  bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  a l low any fu r ther  

ev idence or  address in  regard  to  these mat te rs  because 

th is . . .  

 I  have ind i ca ted ,  I  am not  go ing  to  make any  

f ind ings and I  w i l l  make  recommendat ions fo r  these to  be  

sub jec ted  to  o the r  p rocesses.   Everybody w i l l  ge t  a  chance  

to  do  so  in  such processes.    

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you to  everybody concerned.   We 10 

w i l l  ad journ  fo r  now.   I  w i l l  resume a f te r  15-minutes .   We 

ad journ .  

ADV MADLANGA :    Thanks,  Cha i rperson.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS FOR A SHORT BREAK 

INQUIRY RESUMES AFTER SHORT BREAK  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon,  Mr  Hu l ley,  aga in .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  next  p iece  –  the  next  

por t ion  o f  ev idence w i l l  re la te  to  Mr  Eksteen o f  BDK 

At to rneys.   He w i l l  be  g iv ing  a  summary in  respect  o f  h is  

c l ien t  who i s  L ieu tenant  Genera l  Phah lane.   And L ieu tenant  20 

Genera l  Phah lane has been g iven an oppor tun i ty  th rough 

Mr  Eksteen to  read a  summary o f  h is  ev idence in  re la t ion  

to  the  response to  Mr  McBr ide  and  Mr  Sesoko.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Eksteen,  a re  you there?  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Good a f te rnoon,  Cha i r.   I  am here .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon ,  good a f te rnoon.   Thank 

you.   You appear  fo r  L ieu tenant  Genera l  Phah lane.   I s  that  

cor rec t?  

ADV EKSTEEN :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you conf i rm  tha t  you w i l l  be  g iv ing  a 

summary o f  L ieu tenant  Genera l  Phah lane ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  

a f f idav i t s  in  response to  the  ev idence or  a f f idav i t s  o f  

Mr  McBr ide  and Mr  Sesoko.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV EKSTEEN :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  

bo th  as  the  a l legat ions o f  Mr  Sesoko and Mr  McBr ide  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    . . .a re  bas i ca l l y  the  same.   There  is  on ly  

on  aspect  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    . . .w i th  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :01 :56]  in  

regard ing  to  Mr  Sesoko ’s  ev idence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And a lso ,  you con f i rm the  

unders tand ing  tha t  th is  i s  –  once th is  has been done,  then 

your  c l ien t  w i l l  no  longer  be ing  seek ing  to  pu rsue  cross-20 

examinat ion?  

ADV EKSTEEN :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   We unders tand  

tha t  fu l l y  and . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Okay a l r igh t .   I s  i t  f ine  i f  I  

g ive  you 30 -minutes?  Obv ious ly,  you are  f ree  to  f in ish  
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ear l ie r  than 30-minutes .  

ADV EKSTEEN :    I  am sure  tha t  tha t  w i l l  be  su f f i c ien t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Go ahead.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  be l ieve  the  

s ta tement  o f  my  c l ien t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  the  Commiss ion .   I t  

was qu i te  a  lengthy  s ta tement  regard ing  the  one o f  

McBr ide .   Mr  McBr ide ’s  ev idence as  we l l .   That ,  I  th ink ,  h i s  

s ta tement  w i th  a l l  the  annexures amounts  to  over  500 

pages.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV EKSTEEN :    So,  I  am apo log ise  tha t  we d id  no t  do  a  

summary wh ich  was then fo rwarded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Bu t  I  am jus t  go ing  to  f rom the  s ta tement  

h igh l igh t  some por t ions  wh ich  we th ink  i s  essent ia l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    . . . tha t  the  pub l i c  shou ld  hear  regard ing  

the  a l legat ions tha t  was made aga ins t  L ieu tenant  Genera l  20 

Phah lane in  th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  s ta r t  on  h is  

s ta tement  regard ing  the  ev idence o f  Mr  McBr ide  on  

paragraph 3 .33 ,  whereby L ieu tenant  Genera l  Phah lane 
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c lea r ly  says tha t  the  a l legat ions tha t  were  made aga ins t  

h im in  f ron t  o f  the  Commiss ion  du r ing  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  

McBr ide  is  to ta l l y  no t  new to  h im.   These a l legat ions come 

a  long way back s ince  2009.   He was imp l ica ted ,  negat ive ly  

imp l ica ted  and there  was negat ive l y  pub l i c i t y  and undue  

a t tacks  a l l  the  t ime s ince  2009  on L ieu tenant  Genera l  

Phah lane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    A f te r  Mr  McBr ide  re turned in  2016  to  the 

Off i ce  o f  IP ID,  the  a l legat ions then ensued by  h im and 10 

Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  who worked  c lose ly  together  w i th  

Mr  McBr ide  in  the  l i t iga t ions.   Now,  I  th ink  the  Cha i r  wou ld  

know tha t  dur ing  the  ev idence o f  Genera l  Mabu la  and 

Br igad ier  Ncube when they had the  oppor tun i ty  to  c ross-

examine Mr  McBr ide ,  Mr  McBr ide  even conceded tha t  the  

invo l vement  o f  Mr  O ’Su l l i van  was not  as  i t  was supposed to  

be  because he  was not  in te rac ted  as  an  invest iga tor  

acco rd ing  to  the  IPID Act ,  o r  he  was be ing  seen as  a  

compla inant .    

 There  were  reasons g iven why they are  invo lved  20 

in ,  bu t  Mr  McBr ide  conceded tha t  i t  was wrongfu l  and tha t  

h is  invo l vement  was a  b i t  overboard .   Now,  Cha i r,  I  am 

go ing  to  go  fu r ther  on  to  say  a t  parag raph 5  o f  h i s  

s ta tement  i s  tha t  dur ing  June 2012 the re  were  cer ta in  

a l legat ions made  by  POPCRU members  regard ing  un lawfu l  
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p rac t i se  tha t  took p lace a t  the  Forens ic  Serv i ce  D iv i s ion  

where  Genera l  Phah lane a t  tha t  s tage was the  D iv is iona l  

Commiss ioner  o f  the  Forens ic  Serv ices  Depar tment .    

 He immedia te ly  t hen a f te r  th is  in fo rmed the  then  

Nat iona l  Commiss ioner,  Genera l  Ph iyega about  these 

a l legat ions and  he requested  tha t  these shou ld  be  

invest iga ted  immedia te l y  as  he  fe l t  he  fee l s  h i s  name to  be  

c lea red and h is  d iv is ion  to  be  c lea red o f  any wrongdo ing  in  

any par t .    

 Th is  was be ing  done and Genera l  Ph iyega  10 

ins t ruc ted  an  outs ide  fo rens i c  account ing  serv ices ,  CPN to  

conduct  a  t horough fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  in to  the  

a l legat ions wh ich  were  made.   Then in  December  2016,  the  

same a l legat ions made by  POPCRU and wh ich  were  

invest iga ted  by  CPN,  there  aga in ,  came pedd led(? )  by  

McBr ide  and  O’Su l l i van  i n  the  na t iona l  med ia  and  before  

the  Commi t tee  o f  the  Par l iament  by  Mr  McBr ide .    

 Now the  CPN has ,  a f te r  the i r  inves t iga t ion  in  2012,  

gave a  thorough repor t  wh ich  is  a lso  in  f ron t  o f  the  

Commiss ion  a t tached to  Genera l  Phah lane ’s  a f f idav i t  and I  20 

th ink  wh ich  is  se l f -exp lanatory  and  we do not  need to  g ive  

exact ly  what  a l l  is .  

 But  they found tha t  there  was no wrongdo ing  on 

Genera l  Phah lane ’s  s ide  or  then there  was cer ta in  aspects  

wh ich  they po in ted  out  wh ich  needed to  be  a t tended  by  the  
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Nat iona l  Commiss ioner  and o the r  persons o f  the  SAPS.   

Then Genera l  Phah lane. . .   I  am jus t  so  sor ry  fo r  tha t ,  

Cha i r.   I  jus t  want  to  go  th rough,  qu ick ly,  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    On the  16 t h  o f  May  2017,  

Genera l  Phah lane had to  appear  be fore  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  o f  the  po l i ce  in  Par l iament  a f te r  a l legat ions tha t  

were  made by  Mr  McBr ide  on  the  4 t h  o f  May befo re  th is  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  regard ing  a l legat ions o f  co r rup t ion  and 

a l l  th ings l i ke  tha t ,  counte r  charges tha t  apparent ly  were  10 

be ing  invest iga ted  and o ther  wrongdo ings wh ich  he  then  

asked tha t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  to  in te rvene.    

 Genera l  Phah lane and members  o f  the  SAPS d id  

a t tend th is  Par l iamentary  hear ing  in  f ron t  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  and they addressed a l l  the  aspects  be fore  the  

Cha i rperson,  then Mr  Franco is  Beekman.   Th is  was a l l  

because o f  a l legat ions wh ich  were  made by  Mr McBr ide  

be fore  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  the  4 t h  o f  May.    

 Now one wou ld  –  Cha i r  wou ld  remember  tha t ,  I  

th ink  du r ing  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  McBr ide ,  he  is  the  one 20 

tha t  sa id  bu t  he  was dragged to  Par l iament  by  

Genera l  Phah lane wh ich  is  now to ta l l y  incor rec t  because i t  

appears  tha t  he  was the  f i rs t  one  tha t  was in  f ron t  o f  the  

commi t tee  and Genera l  Phah lane was then bas i ca l l y  asked 

to  come to  th is  commi t tee  and not  l i ke  Mr McBr ide  wanted 
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the  commi t tee  to  be l ieve  –  th is  commi t tee  to  be l i eve  tha t  

he  was dragged to  the  Par l iament  Commi t tee  and there fo re  

Genera l  Phah lane jus t  want  to  co r rec t  tha t  as  we l l  in  th is  

aspect .  

 Genera l  Phah lane says tha t  he  indeed wants  to  

c red i t  Mr  McBr ide  fo r  hav ing  learn t  except iona l  –  we l l ,  f rom 

these masters  and hand lers  in  un leash ing  a  propaganda  

mach inery  on  a  ta rge t  wh ich  Genera l  Phah lane fe l t  was h im 

in  th is  mat te r  and then be ing  re len t less  in  h i s  e f fo r ts  to  

cause ha rm and reputa t ion  o f  those in  h is  s igh t .    10 

 The s t ra tegy(? )  tha t  was waged aga ins t  the  

s t rugg le ,  seems to  what  he  admi red  and he d id  no t  le t  an  

oppor tun i ty  to  pass i t  ou t  in  rep ly  such to  h is  benef i t .   He,  

there fo re ,  sa lu te  Mr  McBr ide  in  th is  regard .   Th is  desp i te  

the  pa in  and hur t  Genera l  Phah lane had to  go  th rough in  

h is  pe rson and characte r.  

 Cha i r,  I  w i l l  go  on  to . . .   Before  Apr i l /May 2016,  

Genera l  Phah lane has not  eve r  met  Mr  Rober t  McBr ide .   He  

have heard  about  h im but  he  has never  met  h im in  person  

or  known,  seen h im,  o r  anyth ing .   And then he was  h igh ly  20 

surpr i sed on the  day tha t  he  came out  o f  h is  house  and he 

saw tha t  Mr  McBr ide  was a t  h is  house.   He was dr i v ing  an  

E-200 Mercedes a t  the  t ime and he was dr i v ing  –  there  was  

–  he  was accompanied by  a  lady a t  tha t  s tage.  

 Mr  McBr ide  in t roduced  h imse l f  to  
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Genera l  Phah lane and he then in fo rmed Genera l  Phah lane  

tha t  the  reason why he is  there  is  jus t  to  come and ta lk  to  

h im because he is  a lso  o f  the  v iew tha t  Genera l  Phah lane 

is  l i ke  h im under  a t tack .   I t  i s  no tewor thy  to  no te  tha t  a t  

tha t  s tage McBr ide  was a lso  suspended f rom IP ID.    

 He then to ld  Genera l  Phah lane and sa id  to  h im 

tha t :   “The peop le  do  not  want  us  good peop le  and they w i l l  

do  every th ing  in  the i r  power  to  f igh t  us” .   Now,  

Genera l  Phah lane a t  th is  s tage d id  no t  unders tand what  he  

was say ing  about  th is  bu t  he  took i t  up  tha t  because o f  h is  10 

suspens ion  and a l l  the  a l legat ions tha t  was now made  

aga ins t  Genera l  Phah lane cou ld  have been th is  fo r  h im to  

say or  make th i s  remark  to  say :   “They want  us ,  good 

peop le ,  ou t  and  w i l l  do  every th ing  to  ge t  ou t  o f  our  

pos i t ions . ”  

 He then fu r the r  sa id  tha t :   “They are  us ing  the  

med ia  to  a t tack  us . ”   And tha t  he  and Genera l  Phah lane 

shou ld  be  care fu l .   McBr ide  a l so  caut ioned 

Genera l  Phah lane to  say tha t  he  must  be  very  care fu l  o f  

the  Min is te r  o f  Po l i ce ,  Mr  Nath i  Nh leko,  and the  fo rmer 20 

Head o f  the  D i rec tor  Pr io r i t y  Cr ime Invest iga t ions,  Ma jor  

Genera l  Nt lemeza who were  a l leged ly  beh ind  the  a t tacks  

on  McBr ide  and on Genera l  Phah lane.  

 To  h is  surp r ise ,  McBr ide  o f fe red  ass is tance and  

sa id  tha t  they must  now work  together  in  dea l ing  w i th  these  
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peop le  who are  t ry ing  to  ge t  them out  and dest roy  and 

rep lace them by peop le  o f  the i r  own.   Genera l  Phah lane ’s  

response to  Mr  McBr ide  a t  tha t  s tage was tha t  he  has go t  

no th ing  to  wor ry  about .    

 The a l legat ions made in  the  med ia  aga ins t  h im,  

there  was noth ing  tha t  he  need to  fear  about  because he  

knew the re  is  no th ing  tha t  he  d id  wrong on h is  pa r t  and he  

even is  the  one  who went  and requested tha t  a l l  these 

a l legat ions be  invest iga ted ,  and he  wanted i t  to  be  done on 

a  thorough ly  bas i s  so  tha t  i f  he  is  be ing  imp l ica ted  tha t  he  10 

go then and be he ld  accountab le  fo r  any wrongdo ing  on h is  

par t .    

 Then on the  5 t h  o f  June 2016,  Genera l  Phah lane  

and h i s  w i fe  were  under  a t tack  by  th ree  gunmen wh i le  they 

were  a t  a  spa in  Dunke ld ,  Johannesburg .   And then the  

same n igh t  he  even get  a  message f rom Mr McBr ide  where  

Mr  McBr ide  sent  h im a  tex t  message and sa id :   “Jus t  

heard .   Sor ry  about  tha t .   Le t  me know i f  you need he lp .   

Of fe r  s t i l l  s tands. ”   Genera l  Phah lane then to ld  h im or  jus t  

responded by  say ing :   “Noted.   Apprec ia te  i t .   K ind  20 

regards. ”    

 Then a  few months back in  2017,  he  found out  tha t  

i t  was McBr ide  who obta ined a  copy because shor t l y  a f te r  

th is  a t tack  there  was a  v ideo  tha t  was c i r cu la ted  on 

YouTube and a l l  th ings about  what  happened a t  the  spa,  
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and i t  was to  h i s  surpr i se  how invest iga tors  wou ld  now le t  

th is  leak  ou t .   And th is  i s  why in  2017 he found out  i t  was  

Mr  McBr ide  who obta ined th is  v ideo foo tage o f  the  spa.    

 And th is  was then fo rwarded to  Mr  O ’Su l l i van  and  

h is  ass i s tan t ,  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :16 :24]   And i t  was a l so  

c i rcu la ted  to  the  med ia  by  one o f  the  Genera l s ,  Mr  P ie ter  

Lou is  Myburgh.   And th is  v ideo jus t  went  a l l  a round the  

count ry  and Mr  McBr ide  aga in  re turned to  o f f i ce  in  

October  2016.    

 Paragraph 52 o f  h is  s ta tement ,  i t  says  tha t  on  the  10 

14 t h  o f  November  2016,  he  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom a  Mr  Fr i k  

Terb lanche,  the  bu i ld ing  cont rac tor  o f  h is  house who then  

in fo rmed h im tha t  he  was approached by  peop le  who to ld  

h im tha t  they were  conduct ing  an  invest iga t ion  on  the  

bu i ld ing  o f  h is  house in  Sab le  H i l l s ,  Water f ron t  Esta te .  

 Smi t  ind ica ted  tha t  four  peop le ,  a  wh i te  male ,  a  

wh i te  female  and  two A f r i can males  approached h im a t  the  

crèche in  Sab le  H i l l  where  h is  w i fe  was render ing  serv i ces .   

The leader  o f  the  four  ident i f ied  h imse l f  as  Mr  Pau l  

O ’Su l l i van  who was lead ing  du r ing  the  in te rv iew and 20 

quest ion ing  in  re la t ion  to  the  const ruc t ion  o f  

Genera l  Phah lane ’s  house.    

 He immedia te ly  repor ted  th i s  to  Genera l  Phah lane.   

He a l so  found i t  s t range tha t  he  ge t  quest ioned regard ing  

the  bu i ld ing  o f  the  house and what  i s  go ing .   He a lso  
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in fo rmed -  see ing  tha t  he  d id  no t  know Genera l  Phah lane,  

he  go t  the  message,  immedia te ly  in fo rmed h is  d r ive r,  

Capta in  O l ive r  du  Preez to  in fo rm Genera l  Phah lane as  

soon as  poss ib le  o f  the  inc ident  tha t  occur red .  

 Then on the  16 t h ,  two days l a te r,  t he  same peop le  

went  back to  Mr  Smi t  a t  h is  –  a t  the  crèche where  h is  w i fe  

was work ing  and they wanted h im to  make a  s ta tement  and 

he sa id  tha t  he  was th ink ing  and  la te r  go t  a  tex t  message 

f rom Sarah Jane Trent  wh ich  reads  as  fo l lows:  

“Dear,  s i r.   IP ID Invest iga t ion .    10 

I  conf i rm tha t  the  case number  as  CCN-

2016030085.   A meet ing  is  a r ranged fo r  11 :00  on  

Fr iday a t  IP ID ’s  o f f i ce ,  C i ty  Forum Bu i ld ing ,  114 

Madiba S t ree t ,  P re tor ia  nearest  corner  Schubar t  

S t ree t .  

We have conf i rmed tha t  your  s ta tus  i s  a  w i tness,  

no t  a  suspect .  

You are ,  o f  course ,  we lcome to  br ing  an  a t to rney  

w i th  you i f  you  l i ke .  

We are  look ing  fo rward  to  see ing  then.  20 

Regards,  Sarah Jane Trent . ”   

Now,  i t  was because o f  the  second ca l l  and th ings tha t  

Genera l  Phah lane dec ided tha t  he  needs to  b r i ng  th is  

under  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  Cr ime In te l l igence  to  be  

invest iga ted  because i t  was s t range why pr iva te  persons 
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a re  now gather ing  around,  quest i on ing  the  bu i lder  o f  h is  

house,  want  to  ge t  p lans o f  the  house.   A l l  th ings l i ke  tha t .   

And he thought  tha t  th is  i s  no t  normal .    

 He needs to  repor t  th is  to  the  Cr ime In te l l igence 

so  tha t  i t  can  be seen and they  must  dec ide  whether  i t  

needs to  be  invest iga ted  as  he  was a t  tha t  s tage been 

appo in ted  as  the  ac t ing  Nat iona l  Commiss ioner  and i t  looks  

l i ke  i t  cou ld  have  been a  th rea t  aga ins t  the  ac t ing  Nat iona l  

Commiss ioner.  

 Th is  was then indeed be ing  done and Genera l  10 

Make le ,  the  Head o f  the  Cr ime In te l l igence Un i t  a t  tha t  

s tage,  the  ac t ing  Reg iona l  Commiss ioner  dec ided tha t  an  

invest iga t ion  shou ld  be  done by  the  Cr ime In te l l igence  

Serv i ces  i t se l f .   Because o f  the  invest iga t ion  tha t  was  

be ing  done by  Cr ime In te l l igence  and the  repor t  tha t  was  

be ing  fo rwarded to  Genera l  Make le ,  a  dec is ion  was then  

been taken to  appo in t  a  to ta l l y  independent  team tha t  was  

f rom anothe r  p rov ince,  Nor th  West ,  to  invest iga te  th is  

mat te r  and to  f ind  ou t  the  invo l vement  o f  O ’Su l l i van ,  Sarah  

Jane Trent  and a l l  th is  because  i t  d id  no t  seem to  be 20 

cor rec t .   And i f  there  was any wrongdo ing  and i f  is  there  

any th rea t  aga ins t  Genera l  Phah lane a t  tha t  s tage.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Oh,  sor ry,  Cha i r.   I  am jus t  look ing  

qu ick ly.   Ja ,  Genera l  Phah lane a t  tha t  s tage was,  when th is  
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a l l  happened,  he  was in  L impopo w i th  a  s t ra teg i c  p lann ing  

sess ion  w i th  o ther  members  when he was in fo rmed about  

a l l  o f  th is ,  and on h is  re tu rn ,  he  then was inv i ted  to  have a  

s t ra teg ic  sess ion  w i th  L ieu tenant  Genera l  Bonang Mgwenya  

and the  fo rmer  Major  Genera l  S ib iya  o f  the  DPCI  tha t  

requested to  mee t  w i th  h im and Mr  McBr ide .    

 He was persuaded and went  to  th is  meet ing  a t  –  in  

Centur ion  a t  Ler iba  Lodge on Fr iday,  the 

18 t h  o f  November  2016.   And i t  was du r ing  th is  meet ing ,  

once aga in ,  tha t  he  urged Mr  McBr ide  to  ensure  tha t  a  10 

thorough invest iga t ion  be  conducted o f  the  a l legat ions  

aga ins t  h imse l f .   He fu r ther  caut ioned h im about  the 

invo l vement  o f  Mr  O ’Su l l i van  in  the  invest iga t ions.    

 Now,  we now know tha t  desp i te  tha t ,  Mr  McBr ide  

d id  no t  s top  the  invo lvement  o f  Mr  O ’Su l l i van .   Mr  

O ’Su l l i van  jus t  cont inued on –  w i th  the  inves t iga t ions  

aga ins t  Phah lane a l though he was not  an  invest iga tor,  

permi t ted  to  be ing  so .   Then on the  22 n d  February  2016,  

Genera l  Phah lane rece ived a  te lephon ic  ca l l  f rom Mr  

Cedr ick  Nkab inde,  who was a t  tha t  s tage the  invest iga tor  20 

f rom IP ID,  to  in fo rm h im tha t  he  is  now invest iga t ing  the  

charge o f  de fea t ing  the  ends o f  jus t i ce  aga ins t  

Genera l  Phah lane wh ich  was reg i s te red under  Kameeldr i f t  

CAS 123/11/2016 .    

 The reason fo r  Nkab inde ’s  ca l l  was to  secure  an  
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appo in tment  because he wanted  to  ob ta in  a  warn ing  

s ta tement  f rom Genera l  Phah lane regard ing  th is  a l legat ion .   

There  was then a r rangements  made tha t  Genera l  Phah lane 

wou ld  meet  w i th  Mr  Nkab inde on the  23 r d  o f  November  a t  

roundabout  two o ’c lock  in  the  a f te rnoon a t  the  IP ID Off i ces .    

 Unfo r tunate ly,  due to  o ther  more  impor tan t  mat te rs  

tha t  ra ised,  Genera l  Phah lane had  to  cance l  the  dea l  –  the 

appo in tment  w i th  Mr  Nkab inde,  bu t  what  i s  o f  no te  here  is  

tha t  on  the  morn ing  o f  the  23 r d ,  i t  was shor t l y  a f te r  e igh t  

tha t  Genera l  Phah lane rece ived aga in  a  tex t  message f rom 10 

the  journa l i s t ,  Mr  Myburgh,  wh ich  reads as  fo l lows:  

“H i ,  Genera l .  

Th is  i s  P ie ter  Lou is  Myburgh f rom News24.  

I  was hop ing  to  ge t  you r  comment  on  the  IPID 

mat te r.  

I  unders tand you have been asked to  make a  

warn ing  s ta tement .  

Thanks. ”  

A round n ine ,  the  same day,  i t  was break ing  news a l l  ove r  

the  med ia ,  News24 and o the r  med ia  p la t fo rms tha t  20 

Genera l  Phah lane now sudden ly  cannot  a t tend th is  and i t  

was head l ined as :   “Phah lane –  No Show a t  IP ID” .   So tha t  

i s  c lea r  to  po in t  ou t  to  the  Cha i r  and th is  Commiss ion  how 

IP ID and Mr  O ’Su l l i van  worked together  and invo lved the  

med ia  to  pu t  any  negat ive  pub l i c i t y  and whatever  they can 
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ge t  aga ins t  Genera l  Phah lane.  

 Th is  mat te r  tha t  was re fer red  to  o f  the  de feat ing  

the  ends o f  jus t i ce  was ,  desp i te  ob ta in ing  

Genera l  Phah lane ’s  s ta tement ,  warn ing  s ta tement ,  i t  was 

processed to  the  NPA for  a  dec is ion  and due to  the  lack  o f  

ev idence,  the  NPA dec l ined to  p rosecute  in  the  mat te r,  bu t  

desp i te  tha t  there  was another  case be ing  opened,  CAS 

146/05/2007 fo r  cor rup t ion  and f raud wh ich  invo lved an  

a l leged rece ip t  o f  g ra t i f i ca t ion  in  t he  fo rm o f  veh ic les  f rom 

a  person,  no t  be ing  in  bus iness w i th  the  SAPS. 10 

 Now th is  mat te r  was in  June 2018 s t ruck  f rom the  

cour t  ro l l  and to  da te  i t  has  no t  been re turned and i t  i s  

c lea r  tha t  -  L ieu tenant  Genera l  Phah lane ’s  v iew is  tha t  i t  i s  

because o f  the  lack  o f  ev idence tha t  there  was any 

wrongdo ing  on h i s  pa r t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    Or  tha t  there  was any cor rup t ion  

invo l ved.   Th is  was c lear ly  no t  a  cor rup t ion  mat te r.   I t  was  

–  exp lanat ions were  g iven and I  th ink  tha t  i s  a lso  the  

reason why the  mat te r  has no t  re tu rned ye t  a f te r  June  20 

2018.   I  jus t  want  to  go . . .   Sor ry.   Apo log ies ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  you are  le f t  w i th  about  seven  

minutes .    

ADV EKSTEEN :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Ja ,  then. . .   Ja ,  Mr  McBr ide  

crea ted the  impress ion  tha t  there  were  counte r  
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invest iga t ions and he was the  one who imp l ica ted  tha t  

Genera l  Phah lane is  the  one.   Now,  c lear ly,  what  we have  

read he re ,  i t  was Genera l  Make le  who was a t  f i rs t  -  

requested the  Cr ime In te l l i gence Un i t  to  do  an  

invest iga t ion  and  a f te r  the  repor t  back to  –  then  i t  was  

dec ided to  inc lude the  Nor th  West  Team under  Genera l  

Mabu la(s ic )  (Make le? )  to  invest iga te .    

 I t  i s  a lso  o f  no te  to  comment  tha t  invest iga t ions  

were  be ing  done  w i th  the  NPA.   I t  was an NPA dr iven 

invest iga t ion .   They were  in  charged and they were  the  10 

ones who gave Genera l  Mabu la (s ic )  (Make le? )  and them 

leads what  to  do  and what  they need to  dec ide  i f  

p rosecut ion  wou ld  then be ins t i tu ted  or  no t .  

 I t  i s  a lso  o f  no te  tha t  Mr  O ’Su l l i van  as  we l l  as  

Ms Trent  and two  IP ID members  were  la te r  a r res ted  on th is  

inc ident .   The mat te r  was w i thdrawn but  I  be l ieve  tha t  the 

invest iga t ion  is  s t i l l  w i th  the  NPA and tha t  mat te r  m ight  

re tu rn  to  cour t  as  Mr  McBr ide  and he was a l so  imp l ica ted  

in  tha t  mat te r.    

 Now,  i t  i s  a lso  o f  no te  to  say tha t  Mr  Nkab inde  20 

la te r  on  made a  fu l l  a f f idav i t  regard ing ,  he  ca l led  i t  the 

Phah lane Team tha t  was fo rmed to  invest iga te  the  mat te rs  

aga ins t  h im and there  were  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  were  be ing  

repor ted  to  the  Ombudsman,  to  the  Par l iament  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  and a l l  tha t .   I  th ink  everybody knows tha t  there  
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was a  b ig  th ing  i n  the  med ia  as  we l l  regard ing  tha t .   And 

even a f te r  Mr  Nkab inde was then un lawfu l l y  be ing  

suspended fo r  then b lowing the  wh is t le  on  IP ID regard ing  

th is .  

 Now,  Genera l  Phah lane is  o f  the  v iew tha t  

Mr  O ’Su l l i van ,  he  even du r ing  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  

made a  comment  to  say i t  i s  no t  IP ID,  i t  i s  O ’Su l l i van  

po l i ce  invest iga t ions aga ins t  h im  and i t  i s  no t  l i ke  the  

leg is la to r  wanted  IP ID to  conduct  bu t  they were  no t  fu l l y  

under  what  O ’Su l l i van  wanted them to do  and not  to  do  and 10 

who to  do .  

 You have a lso  heard  th is  morn ing ,  

Genera l  Phah lane a lso  rece ived severa l  emai ls  where  he  

was th rea tened i f  he  does not  want ,  when he was in  the 

pos i t ion  o f  ac t ing  Nat iona l  Commiss ioner,  to  suspend 

Genera l  Moono(?)  [00 :30 :32]  who the  a l legat ions made  

aga ins t  by  O ’Su l l i van .   There  were  numerous th ings and 

then du r ing  these emai ls ,  as  we l l ,  tha t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  the  

Commiss ion ,  O ’Su l l i van  a lso  th rea tened tha t  shou ld  he  not  

comply  w i th  i t ,  the  focus w i l l  then tu rn  to  tha t  o f  aga ins t  20 

Genera l  Phah lane.  

 And we -  Genera l  Phah lane and ourse l ves are  o f  

the  v iew,  th is  i s  a lso  the  reason why then they dec ided to 

approach the  Commiss ion .   I t  i s  c lea r  tha t  the  a l l egat ions  

wh ich  they made have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  s ta te  capture .   
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There  is  no  s ta te  capture .   There  were  a l legat ions made 

tha t  the  NPA favoured ou r  c l ien t  wh ich  is  to ta l l y  –  I  mean,  

we have heard  i t  th is  morn ing  f rom the  NA i t se l f ,  tha t  they 

d id  the i r  dec i s ions independent ly,  ob jec t i ve ly,  and  

accord ing  to  law.  

 On the  one o f  Mr  Sesoko.   I f  I  can  end the re ,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV EKSTEEN :    . . . tha t  I  jus t  want  to  make there ,  i s  tha t  

to  Genera l  Phah lane ’s  surpr i se  tha t  Mr  Sesoko sudden ly  10 

dragged h im in to  the  redempt ion(? )  mat te r  and  made  

a l legat ions aga ins t  h im tha t  he  was invo lved  in  the 

redempt ion  mat te r,  wh ich  is  c lear ly,  c lear l y  fa lse ,  and 

base less .  

 Never  was Genera l  Phah lane ever  invo lved in  any  

invest iga t ions o r  even imp l ica ted  by  any persons  

prev ious ly.   I t  was on ly  now sudden ly  done by  Sesoko.   

Th is  c lear ly  shows the  mal ic iousness tha t  IP ID,  by  names 

o f  Mr  Sesoko  and then Mr  McBr ide ,  have  aga ins t  

Genera l  Phah lane.    20 

 They want  to  imp l ica te  h im in  mat te rs  wh ich  he  is  

no t  even invo lved in  and,  there fo re ,  he  a lso  found  i t  very,  

very  surpr is ing ,  and s t range and  a lso  d is tu rb ing  tha t  he  

ge ts  d ragged in to  mat te rs  where  he  was never  i nvo lved 

w i th .    
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 Cha i r,  I  th ink  t ha t  bas i ca l l y  wou ld  sum up the  

summary jus t  invo l v ing  Genera l  Phah lane ’s  imp l ica t ions.   

That  the  a l legat ions,  i t  i s  c lea r,  these a l legat ions are  

base less .   There  is  no  ev idence tha t  there  was every  

wrongdo ing .   The mat te rs  were  i nvest iga ted .   There  are 

s t i l l  mat te rs .    

 We concede to  tha t ,  tha t  i s  cur ren t ly  in  f ron t  o f  

cour t .   And yes,  the  ou tcome o f  tha t  w i l l  be  –  sure l y  i t  i s  a  

mat te r  tha t  the  pub l i c  w i l l  know about ,  bu t  

Genera l  Phah lane a lso  leave tha t  as  sub- jud ic ia  as  the  10 

mat te r  i s  in  f ron t  o f  cou r t .    

 The o the r  cases ,  l i ke  i s  sa id ,  were  thorough ly  

invest iga ted .   I t  was the  dec is ion  by  the  NPA’s ,  and tha t  

the  reason to  imp l ica te  h im in  s ta te  captu re  was mal ic ious 

and wrongfu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Eksteen.   Thank you ve ry  

much.   So,  i t  w i l l  be  recorded tha t ,  there fore ,  the  cross-

examinat ion  w i l l  no t  p roceed and L ieu tenant  Genera l  

Phah lane has had the  oppor tun i ty  o f  hav ing  you g iv ing  a  

summary o f  h is  response to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Sesoko and 20 

Mr  McBr ide .   Thank you very  much.   Mr  Hu l ley,  d id  you  

want  to  say anyth ing?  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  bu t  i f  you  want  to?  

ADV HULLEY SC :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  mere ly  w ish  to  record  

once you have comple ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    Bu t  tha t  wraps up fo r  –  th ings to  a  

conc lus ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    The a f fa i rs  o f  the  Law Enforcement  

Agency Works t ream for  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .    

ADV EKSTEEN :    I  jus t  want  to  say tha t  Genera l  Phah lane 

thanks the  Commiss ion  fo r  the  oppor tun i ty  to  pu t  h is  s ide  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   No,  thank you very  much.   We 10 

w i l l  ad journ  fo r  the  day and you  are  now excused.   We 

ad journ .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS FOR THE DAY 
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